

Tuesday, October 2, 2018 Strategic Planning Council

Chair: Joi Blake

Members: Jenny Akins, Barbara Baer, Michelle Barton, Carmelino Cruz, Olga Diaz, Patti Dixon, Aiden Ely, Kelly Falcone, Tricia Frady, Anel Gonzalez, Laura Gropen, Jack Kahn, Teresa Laughlin, Martha Martinez, Connie Moise, Lisa Norman, Ron Perez, Travis Ritt, Stacy Rungaitis, Connie

Sterling, Sherry Titus, Fari Towfiq, Anthony White

Recorder: Cheryl Ashour

A. Opening

Subject

1. Call to Order

Meeting

Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Category

A. Opening

Access

Public

rpe

Opening

Subject

2. Approval of September 18, 2018 SPC Minutes

Meeting

Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Category

A. Opening

Access

Public

Type

Action, Minutes

Minutes

View Minutes for Sep 18, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Motion & Voting

(not specified)

Motion by Jenny Akins, second by Fari Towfig.

Final Resolution: Motion Carries

Yea: Jenny Akins, Michelle Barton, Barbara Baer, Joi L Blake, Carmelino Cruz, Olga Diaz, Patti Dixon, Aiden Ely, Kelly Falcone, Tricia Frady, Margie Fritch, Anel Gonzalez, Laura Gropen, Jack S Kahn, Teresa Laughlin, Connie S

Moise, Ron Perez, Travis Ritt, Stacy Rungaitis, Connie Sterling, Fari Towfiq, Anthony White

Abstain: Martha Martinez

Not Present at Vote: Lisa M Norman

Action-Second Reading

Subject

1. Naming Request

Meeting Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Category B. Action-Second Reading

Access Public

Type Action-Second Reading

File Attachments

SPC Naming Requests 9.18.18.pdf (50 KB)

Motion & Voting

(not specified)

Motion by Travis Ritt, second by Kelly Falcone.

Final Resolution: Motion Carries

Yea: Jenny Akins, Michelle Barton, Barbara Baer, Joi L Blake, Carmelino Cruz, Olga Diaz, Patti Dixon, Aiden Ely, Kelly Falcone, Tricia Frady, Margie Fritch, Anel Gonzalez, Laura Gropen, Jack S Kahn, Teresa Laughlin, Martha Martinez, Connie S Moise, Ron Perez, Travis Ritt, Stacy Rungaitis, Connie Sterling, Fari Towfiq, Anthony White

C. Action-First Reading

Subject 1. Policies and Procedures

Meeting Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Category C. Action-First Reading

Access Public

Type Action-First Reading

Goals Accreditation Standard 1.C: Institutional Integrity

Accreditation Standard 4.A: Decision-Making Roles and Processes

- a. These were approved at the 5/18/18 P&P meeting:
 - 1. BP 1100 The Palomar Community College District (District requests to move to 2nd & vote to approve.)
 - 2. BP/AP 3440 Service Animals
 - 3. AP 5031 Instructional Materials Fee
 - 4. BP/AP 3540 Sexual & Other Assaults on Campus
 - 5. BP/AP 6250 Budget Management (District requests to move to 2nd and vote to approve.)
- b. These were approved at the 9/7/18 P&P meeting:
 - 1. BP 4005 Formal Communication of Matters of Instruction (for deletion)
 - 2. BP/AP 4023 Course Outline (for deletion)
 - 3. AP 4026 Philosophy and Criteria for International Education
 - 4. BP 4030 Academic Freedom
 - 5. BP/AP 4045 Tutorial Services Programs (for deletion)
 - 6. BP/AP 4060 Agreements with School Districts for Noncredit Adult Education
 - 7. BP/AP 4070 Auditing and Auditing Fees
 - 8. BP/AP 4102 Career-Technical Programs Advisory Committees
 - 9. BP/AP 4103 Cooperative Work Experience Education
 - 10. AP 4104 Workforce Development Contract Education
 - 11. BP/AP 4226 Multiple and Overlapping Enrollments
 - 12. AP 4227 Repeatable Courses
 - 13. AP 4228 Course Repetition Significant Lapse of Time
 - 14. AP 4229 Course Repetition Variable Units
 - 15. BP/AP 4231 Grade Changes
 - 16. AP 4233 Course Content and Grading System

- 17. BP 4250 Probation Dismissal and Readmission
- 18. BP/AP 4260 Pre-requisites, Co-requisites, and Advisories
- 19. BP 4290 Academic Honesty
- 21. BP/AP 4300 Field Trips and Excursions
- 22. AP 4610 Instructional Service Agreements
- 23. BP/AP 4675 Class Size
- 24. BP 7330 Communicable Disease

File Attachments

Exhibit C.1.a-Policies and Procedures.pdf (241 KB) Exhibit C.1.b-Policies and Procedures.pdf (643 KB)

Motion & Voting

Move BP 1100 to action-second reading

Motion by Martha Martinez, second by Connie Sterling.

Final Resolution: Motion Carries

Yea: Jenny Akins, Michelle Barton, Barbara Baer, Joi L Blake, Carmelino Cruz, Olga Diaz, Patti Dixon, Aiden Ely, Kelly Falcone, Tricia Frady, Margie Fritch, Anel Gonzalez, Laura Gropen, Jack S Kahn, Teresa Laughlin, Martha Martinez, Connie S Moise, Ron Perez, Travis Ritt, Stacy Rungaitis, Connie Sterling, Fari Towfiq, Anthony White

D. Information/Discussion

Subject 1. Progress of the EMP 2022 - 2018 Update and FMP 2019 Update

Meeting Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

ategory D. Information/Discussion

Access Public

Type Information/Discussion

E. Accreditation

Subject 1. Palomar College Accreditation Update

Meeting Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Category E. Accreditation

Access Public

Type

F. Reports of Planning Councils/Departments

Subject 1. Finance and Administrative Services Planning Council - Ron Perez

Meeting Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Category F. Reports of Planning Councils/Departments

Access Public

Type Reports

Subject 2. Human Resource Services Planning Council - Lisa Norman

Meeting Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Category F. Reports of Planning Councils/Departments

Access Public

Type Reports

Subject 3. Instructional Planning Council - Jack Kahn

Meeting Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Category F. Reports of Planning Councils/Departments

Access Public

Type Reports

Subject 4. Student Services Planning Council - Aiden Ely

Meeting Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Category F. Reports of Planning Councils/Departments

Access Public

Type Reports

Subject 5. Foundation - Stacy Rungaitis

Meeting Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Category F. Reports of Planning Councils/Departments

Access Public

Type Reports

Subject 6. Professional Development - Kelly Falcone

Meeting Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Category F. Reports of Planning Councils/Departments

Access Public

Type Reports

Subject 7. Guided Pathways

Meeting Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Category F. Reports of Planning Councils/Departments

Access Public

Type Reports

J. Reports of Constituencies

Subject 1. PFF/AFT - Teresa Laughlin/Barbara Baer

Meeting Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Category G. Reports of Constituencies

Access Public

Type Reports

Subject 2. Faculty Senate - Travis Ritt

Meeting Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Category G. Reports of Constituencies

Access Public

Type Reports

Subject 3. Confidential/Supervisory Team - Jenny Akins

eeting Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Category G. Reports of Constituencies

Access Public

Type Reports

Subject 4. CCE/AFT - Anel Gonzalez

Meeting Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Category G. Reports of Constituencies

Access Public

Type Reports

Subject 5. Associated Student Government - Anthony White

Meeting Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Category G. Reports of Constituencies

cess Public

Type Reports

Subject 6. Administrative Association - Connie Sterling

Meeting Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Category G. Reports of Constituencies

Access Public

Type Reports

H. Other

Subject 1. Annual Report

Meeting Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Category H. Other

Access Public

Type Information/Discussion

Subject 2. Report to the Community

Meeting Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Category H. Other

Access Public

Type

Subject 3. Robert Reich

Meeting Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Category H. Other

Access Public

Type

Subject 4. IEPI Grant

Meeting Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Category H. Other

Access Public

Type

Subject 5. Public Affairs Office Awards

Meeting Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Category H. Other

Access

Public

Type

Subject

6. PCTV Human Trafficking Film

Meeting

Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Category

H. Other

Access

Public

Type

I. Adjournment

Subject

1. Adjournment

Meeting

Oct 2, 2018 - Strategic Planning Council

Category

I. Adjournment

Access

Public

Type

Palomar Community College District Strategic Planning Council Tuesday, October 2, 2018)

Members present

Jenny Akins, Michelle Barton, Barbara Baer, Joi L Blake, Carmelino Cruz, Olga Diaz, Patti Dixon, Aiden Ely, Kelly Falcone, Tricia Frady, Margie Fritch, Anel Gonzalez, Laura Gropen, Jack S Kahn, Teresa Laughlin, Martha Martinez, Connie S Moise, Ron Perez, Travis Ritt, Stacy Rungaitis, Connie Sterling, Fari Towfiq, Anthony White

Members absent

Lisa Norman, Sherry Titus

Guests present

Kendyl Magnuson

A. Opening

1. Call to Order

Meeting called to order at 2:35 pm.

2. Approval of September 18, 2018 SPC Minutes

Motion by Jenny Akins, second by Fari Towfiq.

Motion Carries Unanimous

Abstain: Martha Martinez

- B. Action-Second Reading
 - 1. Naming Request

Motion by Travis Ritt, second by Kelly Falcone.

Motion Carries Unanimous

There was a question if administrative fees are taken from the funds. Stacy Rungaitis responded no fees are taken from the 25% to the District, but if allowed by the Donor, administrative fees are taken from the 75% to the Foundation, according to the District Policy on Endowments. The fees go toward the Foundation's operating budget; the Foundation does not receive money from the District for operating costs.

- C. Action-First Reading
 - 1. Policies and Procedures
 - a. These were approved at the 5/18/18 P&P meeting:
 - 1. BP 1100 The Palomar Community College District

Motion by Martha Martinez, second by Connie Sterling to move BP 1100 to action-second reading Motion Carries Unanimous

Motion by Ron Perez, second by Margie Fritch to approve BP 1100 as presented Motion Carries Unanimous

- 2. BP/AP 3440 Service Animals
- 3. AP 5031 Instructional Materials Fee
- 4. BP/AP 3540 Sexual and Other Assaults on Campus
- 5. BP/AP 6250 Budget Management

Motion by Michelle Barton, second by Connie S Moise to move BP/AP 6250 to action-second reading Motion Carries Unanimous

Motion by Fari Towfiq, second by Connie S Moise to approve BP/AP 6250 as presented Motion Carries Unanimous

BP/AP 3440, AP 5031, and BP/AP 3540 will return for action-second reading at the next meeting.

- b. These were approved at the 9/7/18 P&P meeting:
 - 1. BP 4005 Formal Communication of Matters of Instruction (for deletion)
 - 2. BP/AP 4023 Course Outline (for deletion)
 - 3. AP 4026 Philosophy and Criteria for International Education
 - 4. BP 4030 Academic Freedom
 - 5. BP/AP 4045 Tutorial Services Programs (for deletion)
 - 6. BP/AP 4060 Agreements with School Districts for Noncredit Adult Education
 - 7. BP/AP 4070 Auditing and Auditing Fees
 - 8. BP/AP 4102 Career-Technical Programs Advisory Committees
 - 9. BP/AP 4103 Cooperative Work Experience Education
 - 10. AP 4104 Workforce Development Contract Education
 - 11. BP/AP 4226 Multiple and Overlapping Enrollments
 - 12. AP 4227 Repeatable Courses
 - 13. AP 4228 Course Repetition Significant Lapse of Time
 - 14. AP 4229 Course Repetition Variable Units
 - 15. BP/AP 4231 Grade Changes
 - 16. AP 4233 Course Content and Grading System
 - 17. BP 4250 Probation Dismissal and Readmission

- 18. BP/AP 4260 Pre-requisites, Co-requisites, and Advisories
- 19. BP 4290 Academic Honesty
- 21. BP/AP 4300 Field Trips and Excursions
- 22. AP 4610 Instructional Service Agreements
- 23. BP/AP 4675 Class Size
- 24. BP 7330 Communicable Disease

There were no questions. These will return for action-second reading at the next meeting.

D. Information/Discussion

1, Progress of the EMP 2022 - 2018 Update and FMP 2019 Update

Michelle Barton reported she presented the EMP 2022 - 2018 Update and FMP 2019 Update to the Faculty Senate, Classified Staff, Student Services and the Governing Board. Their feedback and input was incorporated into the

E. Accreditation

1. The Accreditation Steering Committee will take action on the Midterm Report at its next meeting. It will then come to SPC for second reading.

F. Reports of Planning Councils/Departments

1. Finance and Administrative Services Planning Council - Ron Perez

Ron Perez reported FASPC is working on PRPs. Mr. Perez provided a brief budget update to SPC. Joi Blake reported she was appointed to a Statewide CEO Funding Formula Task Force.

2. Human Resource Services Planning Council - Lisa Norman

There was no report.

3. Instructional Planning Council - Jack Kahn

Jack Kahn reported IPC met last week and discussed a report on underperforming certificates (7 graduations or less over a a 5 year period). The Faculty Hiring Subgroup is meeting to identify additional faculty positions to add to the faculty hiring priority list.

4. Student Services Planning Council - Aiden Ely

Aiden Ely reported SSPC met September 26 and approved changes to the Behavioral Health and Campus Wellness Committee. Michelle Barton gave a presentation on PRPs. SSPC decided to keep the current PRP form this fall and modify it in the Spring.

5. Foundation - Stacy Rungaitis

Stacy Rungaitis reminded everyone about upcoming Foundation events. She discussed three major gifts totaling approximately \$200,000, and a legacy planned gift for \$180,000.

6. Professional Development - Kelly Falcone

Kelly Falcone reported the Professional Development Committee is working on its goals and updating its plan. Some of the upcoming workshops are: CALM, Guided Pathways, and Mapping.

7. Guided Pathways

Jack Kahn reported the biggest project for guided pathways is the mapping project. Olga Diaz discussed a grant they hope to get through CTE to fund technology for onboarding. The Guided Pathways Committee is discussing bringing back Maria Hesse, Vice Chancellor, ASU to discuss guided pathways integration between universities and community colleges. A group from Palomar may travel out-of-state to tour other community colleges that have a successful Guided Pathways model.

G. Reports of Constituencies

1. PFF/AFT - Teresa Laughlin/Barbara Baer

Teresa Laughlin reported PFF has many activities scheduled for October such as a voter drive at Performing Arts, Library, and MD Courtyard. There are two opportunities coming up for faculty to give input into negotations, one for part-time and one for full-time. Focus groups are planned from October 15-18 to give faculty an opportunity to express concerns. Barbara Baer shared that there are two workshops planned, one regarding part-time healthcare benefits and the other on debt relief.

2. Faculty Senate - Travis Ritt

Travis Ritt reported the Faculty Senate is working on developing goals for the year; a workgroup will be formed to allow leadership for each. Palomar College is hosting the Area D Regional meeting on October 13 at the Rancho Bernardo Center. They will review a resolution regarding the Assist Program (articulation agreement). He discussed the details of the resolution.

3. Confidential/Supervisory Team - Jenny Akins

Jenny Akins reported the E-Council met with President Blake last week. A CAST meeting is scheduled for next week. She reported CAST and AA will work together to plan their spring retreat.

4. CCE/AFT - Anel Gonzalez

Anel Gonzalez reported Ron and Michelle spoke at a recent Classified Speaks meeting about strategic planning and the athletic center; they received good information. The E-Council voted to upgrade membership benefits. Ms. Gonzalez reported she met with Stacy Rungaitis to discuss ways classified can become more involved. There is a new grievance officer at the Escondido Center.

5. Associated Student Government - Anthony White

Anthony White reported ASG reviewed the EMP and FMP at its last meeting with Michelle Barton, Chris Miller and Dennis Astl. They plan to tour the campus and centers.

6. Administrative Association - Connie Sterling

Connie Sterling reported AA and CAST will work together on a retreat.

H. Other

Annual Report

Joi Blake reported the Annual Report is completed; it will be given to partners, donors and community members.

2. Report to the Community

The Foundation is hosting a Report to the Community in December to showcase programs and the economic benefit to the region.

3. Robert Reich

Olga Diaz reminded members Robert Reich will speak at the California Center for the Arts on Novmeber 16. Those faculty and students using the book in their class will receive a ticket. Any remaining tickets will be given on a lottery basis.

4. IEPI Grant

Palomar College will submit another request for an IEPI grant for \$200,000 to increase effectiveness and efficiency.

5. Public Affairs Office Awards

The Public Affairs Office won three awards at the National Council for Public Relations: a bronze for the enewsletter; a silver for social media; and a gold for one of the Palomar News feature stories.

6. PCTV Human Trafficking Film

PCTV plans to submit a film on human trafficking and its victims for regional emmys and at Sundance. There will be a campus showing and dialogue, and a showing to the Foundation, as they funded the project.

I. Adjournment

There being no remaining items, the meeting was adjourned at 3:40 pm



Palomar Community College District

DATE: September 18, 2018

TO: SPC (Strategic Planning Council)

PREPARED BY: Stacy Rungaitis, Executive Director, Palomar College Foundation

TOPIC: Naming of Facilities - First Reading / Possibly Move to Second Reading

OVERVIEW:

In 2013, the District approved AP 3830 - Naming of Facilities. This AP provides the Foundation guidance to engage prospective donors regarding naming opportunities.

The Facilities Review Committee (FRC) approved this request at their meeting on September 6, 2018. The Finance and Administrative Services Planning Council (FASPC) approved this request at their meeting on September 13, 2018. The listed naming opportunities will now move through the participatory governance process seeking approval from the Strategic Planning Council. Lastly, they will appear before the Governing Board for final approval.

Once announced publicly, the Foundation believes these new named facility will lead to additional interest in other naming opportunities of District facilities.

- Rancho Bernardo Education Center Exterior Courtyard Named for Compass Energy Solutions
- 2. Business Administration MD Building, 3rd Floor Accounting Department Information Board (Between Faculty Offices #344/349) Named for Joseph J. Davis, MBA, CPA/PFS

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

Compass Energy Solutions:

Compass Energy Solutions provides customized innovation in energy management and energy capital improvements. A single partnership offering a customer specific approach to providing State, Local Government, Higher Education and K-12 customers with a comprehensive and unbiased energy and financial related package of services. Compass helps to identify and implement projects which create savings potential to pay for upgrading energy infrastructure. Compass Energy Solutions has been engaged as a vendor with Palomar College for nearly four years. The Foundation collaborated with Compass Energy Solutions on a donation in order to name the Exterior Courtyard at the Rancho Bernardo Center. The suggested price to name this space into perpetuity is \$10,000. The Foundation has secured a donation commitment of \$10,000 from Compass Energy Solutions.

Joseph Davis:

Mr. Joe Davis graduated from Palomar College in 1973. He attributes much of his success as a CPA to his start at Palomar. Joe is owner of JJ Davis & Associates, a comprehensive CPA firm in San Diego. Joe is a long-time member of the President's Associates and a former member of the Foundation Board of Directors. The Foundation worked with Joe to identify a location to honor his affinity to the accounting program at Palomar College. The suggested price to name this space is \$2,500. The Foundation has secured a donation commitment of \$2,500 from Joseph J. Davis.

RECOMMENDATION – ACTION: Review and approve; possibly move to second reading and approve

THE DISTRICT REV 5/18/18

BP 1100 THE PALOMAR COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

References:

Education Code Section 72000(b)

The District has been named the Palomar Community College District.

The name is the property of the District. No person shall, without the permission of the Board, use this name or the name(s) of any college(s) or other facilities of the District, or any abbreviation of them, to imply, indicate or otherwise suggest that an organization, product or service is connected or affiliated with, or is endorsed, favored, supported, or opposed by, the District.

The District consists of the following college(s), education center(s):

- Palomar College San Marcos Campus
- Palomar College Escondido Education Center
- Palomar College North Fallbrook Education Center

and sites:

- Camp Pendleton
- Fallbrook
- Pauma
- Mt Carmel
- Ramona
- Palomar College Rancho Bernardo South Education

The official boundary description for the Palomar Community College District is on file at the San Diego County Office of Education.

1	GENERAL INSTITUTION
2	REV 4/3/18 no proposed changes
3	
4	BP 3440 SERVICE ANIMALS
5	
6	References:
7	The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 42 United States Code Sections
8	12101 et seq.;
9	28 Code of Federal Regulations Part 35;
10	28 Code of Federal Regulations Part 36;
11	34 Code of Federal Regulations Part 104.44(b)
12	
13	
14	In order to prevent discrimination on the basis of disability, the District will allow an
15	individual with a disability to use a service animal or miniature horse in District facilities
16	and on District property in compliance with state and federal law.
17	Also see BP 3580 titled Animals on Campus.

Date Adopted: 11/08/2011; Revised:

GENERAL INSTITUTION Rev. 4/3/18 no proposed changes

AP 3440 SERVICE ANIMALS

References:

Civil Code Sections 54 et seq.;

Penal Code Section 365.5;

The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 -- 42 United States Code Sections 12101 et seq.;

- 28 Code of Federal Regulations Part 35;
- 28 Code of Federal Regulations Part 36;
- 34 Code of Federal Regulations Part 104.44(b)

The District will allow an individual with a disability to use a service animal in District facilities and on District property in compliance with state and federal law.

The District will allow an individual with a disability to use a miniature horse as a service animal in District facilities and on District property if the miniature horse has been individually trained to do work or perform tasks for the benefit of the individual with a disability and the District has determined, based on the assessment factors provided in this procedure, that a reasonable accommodation can be made.

The District will allow an individual with a disability to be accompanied by his/her service animal in all areas of the District's facilities where members of the public, invitees, clients, customers, patrons, or participants in services, programs or activities, as relevant, are allowed to go.

These procedures shall also be applicable to an individual who is training a service animal.

Service Animal Defined

A "service animal" for purposes of this procedure means any dog (or miniature horse, as provided herein) that is individually trained to do work or perform tasks for the benefit of an individual with a disability, including a physical, sensory, psychiatric, intellectual, or other mental disability.

Other species of animals, whether wild or domestic, trained or untrained, are not service animals for the purposes of this definition.

The work or tasks performed by a service animal must be directly related to the handler's disability. The crime deterrent effects of an animal's presence and the provision of emotional support, well-being, comfort, or companionship do not constitute work or tasks for the purposes of this definition.

48

49

50

51

Exceptions

The District may ask an individual with a disability to remove a service animal from the premises if:

- The animal is out of control and the animal's handler does not take effective action to control it; or
- The animal is not housebroken.

52 53 54

55

56

If a service animal is excluded under one of these exceptions, the District will give the individual with a disability the opportunity to obtain goods, services, and accommodations or to participate in the service, program, or activity without having the service animal on the premises.

57 58 59

60

61

62

63

64

65

Assessment Factors for Miniature Horses

The District shall consider the following factors:

- The type, size, and weight of the miniature horse and whether the facility can accommodate these features;
- Whether the handler has sufficient control of the miniature horse;
- Whether the miniature horse is housebroken; and
- Whether the miniature horse's presence in a specific facility compromises legitimate safety requirements that are necessary for safe operation.

66 67 68

69

70 71

72

Control

The service animal must have a harness, leash, or other tether, unless either the handler is unable because of a disability to use a harness, leash, or other tether, or the use of a harness, leash, or other tether would interfere with the service animal's safe, effective performance of work or tasks, in which case the service animal must be otherwise under the handler's control (e.g., voice control, signals, or other effective means).

73 74 75

76

Care or Supervision

The District is not responsible for the care or supervision of the animal.

78 79

Inquiries by the District

The District may make two inquiries to determine whether an animal qualifies as a service animal:

81 82

80

• Whether the animal is required because of a disability; and

What work or task the animal has been trained to perform.

83

84 85

The District will not make either of these inquiries when it is readily apparent that an

8

92 93 94

100 101

102 103

animal is trained to do work or perform tasks for an individual with a disability (e.g., the dog is observed guiding an individual who is blind or has low vision, pulling a person's wheelchair, or providing assistance with stability or balance to an individual with an observable mobility disability).

An individual may choose to produce a county service dog license or identification tag as proof that the animal is a service animal. Licensure or certification is not required in order to meet the definition of service animal under this procedure. There are no licensing or certification requirements for miniature horses.

No Surcharge

The District will not ask or require an individual with a disability to pay a surcharge, even if people accompanied by pets are required to pay fees, or to comply with other requirements generally not applicable to people without pets. If the District normally charges individuals for damage caused by pets, an individual with a disability may be charged for damaged caused by his/her service animal.

Office of Primary Responsibility: **Student Services**

Student Services REV 2/28/18

AP 5031 INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS FEES

References:

Education Code Section 76365; Title 5 Sections 59400 et seq.

Students may be required to provide instructional materials required for a credit or non-credit course. Such materials shall be of continuing value to a student outside of the classroom setting and shall not be solely or exclusively available from the District.

Required instructional materials shall not include materials used or designed primarily for administrative purposes, class management, course management, or supervision.

Where instructional materials are available to a student temporarily through a license or access fee, the student shall be provided options at the time of purchase to maintain full access to the instructional materials for varying periods of time ranging from the length of the class up to at least two years. The terms of the license or access fee shall be provided to the student in a clear and understandable manner prior to purchase.

Instructors shall take reasonable steps to minimize the cost and ensure the necessity of instructional materials.

The District will publish these regulations in each college catalog.

DEFINITIONS:

Required Instructional Materials: Any materials which a student must procure or possess as a condition of registration, enrollment, or entry into a class; or any such material which the instructor determines is necessary to achieve the required objectives of a course.

Solely or exclusively available from the District: The instructional material is not available except through the District or that the District requires that the instructional material be purchased or procured from it. A material shall not be considered to be solely or exclusively available from the District if it is provided to the student at the District's actual cost; and 1) the instructional material is otherwise generally available, but is provided solely or exclusively by the District for health and safety reasons or 2) the instructional material is provided in lieu of other generally available but more expensive material which would otherwise be required.

 Required Instructional Materials which are of Continuing Value Outside of the Classroom Setting: Materials which can be taken from the classroom setting and which are not wholly consumed, used up, or rendered valueless as they are applied in achieving the required objectives of a course to be accomplished under the supervision of an instructor during the class.

Establishing Required Materials and Related Fees

The need for an instructional material fee is determined by the discipline faculty in consultation with the department chair, the division dean, and staff in the Office of Instructional Services. The instructional material fee is assessed if it complies with the definitions above and has been approved by the dean.

Based upon scheduled offerings, Aall active instructional material fees are to be published in the class schedule. The fees are paid to be assessed through the district's information system the Bookstore or and paid to the Cashier's Office. and the materials are provided by the department or by the College Bookstore. Departments will make arrangements to provide the materials to students in a timely fashion.

Office of Primary Responsibility: Instructional Services Student Services

GENERAL INSTITUTION REV 4/3/18

BP 3540 SEXUAL AND OTHER ASSAULTS ON CAMPUS

References:

Education Code Sections 67385, and 67385.7, and 67386; 20 US. Code Section 1092(f); 34 Code of Federal Regulations Section 668.46(b)(11)

Any sexual assault or physical abuse, including but not limited to rape as defined by California law, whether committed by an employee, student, or member of the public, that occurs on District property, is a violation of District policies and procedures and is subject to all applicable punishment, including criminal procedures and employee or student discipline procedures. Students, faculty, and staff who may be victims of sexual and other assaults shall be treated with dignity and provided comprehensive assistance.

❖ NOTE: The following language shaded in gray is shown as struck as definitional, prescriptive language is more appropriately codified in an administrative procedure where additional descriptive details are reflected (See AP 3540 Sexual and Other Assaults on Campus) and different types of assault are clearly defined.

"Sexual assault" includes but is not limited to rape, forced sodomy, forced oral copulation, rape by a foreign object, sexual battery, or threat of sexual assault.

The Superintendent/President shall establish administrative procedures that ensure that students, faculty, and staff who are victims of sexual and other assaults receive appropriate information, emergency and treatment, and referral, and that educational information about preventing sexual violence is provided and publicized as required by law.

The procedures shall meet the criteria contained in Education Code Sections 67385, and 67385; as well as 34 Code of Federal Regulations Section 668.46.

Also see BP/AP 3430 titled Prohibition of Harassment and AP 3435 titled Discrimination and & Harassment: Complaints, Investigations, and Awareness Training.

4

5 6

7 8 9

10 11

12

24 25

3

36 37

31

38 39 40

41 42

43 44

GENERAL INSTITUTION REV 5/18/18

SEXUAL AND OTHER ASSAULTS ON CAMPUS AP 3540

References:

Education Code Sections 67385 and 67386; 20 U.S. Code Section 1092(f): 34 Code of Federal Regulations Section 668.46(b)(11)

Any sexual assault or physical abuse, including, but not limited to, rape, domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking as defined by California law, whether committed by an employee, student, or member of the public, occurring on District property, in connection with all the academic, educational, extracurricular, athletic, and other programs of the District, whether those programs take place in the District's facilities or at another location, or on an off-campus site or facility maintained by the District or on grounds or facilities maintained by a student organization is a violation of District policies and regulations procedures and is subject to all applicable punishment, including criminal procedures and employee or student discipline procedures. (Also see AP 5500 titled Standards of Student Conduct)

"Sexual assault" includes but is not limited to, rape, forced sodomy, forced oral copulation, rape by a foreign object, sexual battery, or threat of sexual assault.

"Dating violence" means violence committed by a person who is or has been in a social relationship of a romantic or intimate nature with the victim. The existence of a romantic or intimate relationship will be determined based on the length of the relationship, the type of relationship and the frequency of interaction between the persons involved in the relationship.

"Domestic violence" includes felony or misdemeanor crimes of violence committed by:

- a current or former spouse of the victim;
- by a person with whom the victim shares a child in common;
- by a person who is cohabitating with or has cohabitated with the victim as a
- by a person similarly situated to a spouse of the victim under California law; or
- by any other person against an adult or youth victim who is protected from that person's acts California law.

"Stalking" means engaging in a course of conduct directed at a specific person that would cause a reasonable person to fear for his or her safety or the safety of others, or to suffer substantial emotional distress.

The proposed changes in yellow highlighting are from the Policy & Procedure Service's Legal Updates 25 (November 2014), 26 (April 2015), and 27 (October 2015).

It is the responsibility of each person involved in sexual activity to ensure that he/she 45 has the affirmative consent of the other or others to engage in the sexual activity. Lack 46 47 of protest or resistance does not mean consent, nor does silence mean consent. Affirmative consent must be ongoing throughout a sexual activity and can be revoked at 48 any time. The existence of a dating relationship between the persons involved, or the 49 fact of past sexual relations between them, should never by itself be assumed to be an 50 indicator of consent. 51

52 53

"Affirmative consent" means affirmative, conscious, and voluntary agreement to engage in sexual activity.

54 55 56

57

58

These written procedures and protocols are designed to ensure victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking receive treatment and information. (For physical assaults/violence, also see AP 3500 titled Campus Safety, AP 3510 titled Workplace Violence Plan, and AP 3515 titled-Reporting of Crimes).

59 60 61

62

63

64 65

66

All students, faculty members, or staff members who allege they are the victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking on District property shall be provided with information regarding options and assistance available to them. Information shall be available from the Palomar College Police Department, which shall maintain the identity and other information about alleged sexual assault victims as confidential unless and until the Palomar College Police Department is authorized to release such information.

67 68 69

The Palomar College Police Department shall provide all alleged victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking with the following: upon request:

70 71 72

 A copy of the District's policy and procedure regarding domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking

73 74 75

• A list of personnel on campus who should be notified and procedures for such notification, if the alleged victim consents. The Chief of Police or designee shall notify the following individuals, as applicable:

77 78

76

Superintendent/President

79 80

 Vice President of for Student Services Vice President of for Human Resources Services

81 82 83

 Director of Student Affairs o Director, Communications, Marketing & Public Affairs

84

 Information about the importance of preserving evidence and the identification and location of witnesses

85 86

Services include:

- Facilitate transportation to a hospital, if necessary
- o Referral to a counseling center

The proposed changes in yellow highlighting are from the Policy & Procedure Service's Legal Updates 25 (November 2014), 26 (April 2015), and 27 (October 2015).

- Notification to appropriate police authorities, if desired
- A list of other available campus resources or appropriate off-campus resources
- A description of available services and the persons on campus available to provide those services if requested. The departments responsible for providing or arranging them include:
 - Palomar College Police Department
 - Health Services
 - Office of Student Affairs
 - Counseling Department
 - Human Resource Services
- The victim's option to:
 - notify proper law enforcement authorities, including on-campus and local police:
 - be assisted by campus authorities in notifying law enforcement authorities if the victim so chooses: and
 - decline to notify such authorities;
- The rights of victims and the institution's responsibilities regarding orders of protection, no contact orders, or similar lawful orders issued by a court;
- Information about how the district will protect the confidentiality of victims; and
- Written notification of to victims about options for, and available assistance in, changing academic, living, transportation, and working situations, if requested and if such accommodations are reasonably available, regardless of whether the victim chooses to report the crime to campus police or local law enforcement.
- A description of each of the following procedures:
 - Criminal prosecution
 - Civil prosecution (i.e., lawsuit)
 - District disciplinary procedures, both student and employee
 - Modification of class schedules
 - Tutoring, if necessary

The Vice President for Human Resource Services or designee should be is available to provide assistance to District Police law enforcement unit employees regarding how to respond appropriately to reports of sexual violence.

The District will investigate all complaints alleging sexual assault under the procedures for sexual harassment investigations described in AP 3435 Discrimination & Harassment: Complaints, Investigations, and Awareness Training, regardless of whether a complaint is filed with local law enforcement. All alleged victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking on District property shall be kept informed, through the Palomar College Police Department of any ongoing investigation.

The proposed changes in yellow highlighting are from the Policy & Procedure Service's Legal Updates 25 (November 2014), 26 (April 2015), and 27 (October 2015).

Information shall include the status of any student of employee disciplinary proceedings or appeal. Alleged victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking are required to maintain any such information in confidence, unless the alleged assailant has waived rights to confidentiality.

A complainant or witness who participates in an investigation of sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking will not be subject to disciplinary sanctions for a violation of the District's student conduct policy at or near the time of the incident, unless the District determines that the violation was egregious, including but not limited to, an action that places the health or safety of any other person at risk or involves plagiarism, cheating, or academic honesty.

In the evaluation of complaints in any disciplinary process, it shall not be a valid excuse to alleged lack of affirmative consent that the accused believed that the complainant consented to the sexual activity under either of the following circumstances:

 The accused's belief in affirmative consent arose from the intoxication or recklessness of the accused.

 The accused did not take reasonable steps, in the circumstances known to the accused at the time, to ascertain whether the complainant affirmatively consented.

 In the evaluation of complaints in the disciplinary process, it shall not be a valid excuse that the accused believed that the complainant affirmatively consented to the sexual activity if the accused knew or reasonably should have known that the complainant was unable to consent to the sexual activity under any of the following circumstances:

The complainant was asleep or unconscious.

 The complainant was incapacitated due to the influence of drugs, alcohol, or medication, so that the complainant could not understand the fact, nature, or extent of the sexual activity.

 The complainant was unable to communicate due to a mental or physical condition.

The District shall maintain the identity of any alleged victim, or witness, or third-party reporter of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking on District property, as defined above, in confidence unless the alleged victim, or witness, or third-party reporter specifically waives that right to confidentiality. All inquiries from reporters or other media representatives about alleged domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assaults, or stalking on District property shall be referred to the District's Communications, Marketing, & Public Affairs Office, which shall work with the Palomar College Police Department to assure that all confidentiality rights are maintained.

The proposed changes in **yellow highlighting** are from the Policy & Procedure Service's Legal Updates 25 (November 2014), 26 (April 2015), and 27 (October 2015).

- Additionally, the Annual Security Report will include a statement regarding the District's programs to prevent sex offenses sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, and stalking and procedures that should be followed after a sex offense occurs an incident of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking has been reported, including a statement of the standard of evidence that will be used during any in any district proceeding arising from such a report. The statement must include the following:
 - A description of educational programs to promote the awareness of rape, acquaintance rape, and other forcible and non-forcible sex offenses, domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking
 - Procedures to follow if a domestic violence, dating violence, sex offense, or stalking occurs, including who should be contacted, the importance of preserving evidence to prove a criminal offense, and to whom the alleged offense should be reported
 - Information on a student's right to notify appropriate law enforcement authorities, including on-campus and local police, and a statement that campus personnel will assist the student in notifying these authorities, if the student so requests, and the right to decline to notify these authorities
 - Information about how the District will protect the confidentiality of victims
 - Information for students about existing on and off-campus counseling, mental health, <u>victim advocacy</u>, <u>legal assistance</u>, or other student services for victims of sex offenses
 - Written notification to victims about options for, and available assistance in, changing academic, living, transportation, and working situations, if requested and if such accommodations are reasonably available, regardless of whether the victim chooses to report the crime to campus police or local law enforcement
 - Notice to students that the campus will change a victim's academic situation after an alleged domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault sex offense, or stalking and of the options for those changes, if those changes are requested by the victim and are reasonably available
 - Procedures for campus disciplinary action in cases of an alleged domestic violence, dating violence, <u>sexual assault</u> sex offense, or stalking, including a clear statement that:
 - o Such proceedings shall provide a prompt, fair, and impartial resolution
 - Such proceedings shall be conducted by officials who receive annual training on the issues related to domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking and how to conduct an investigation and hearing process that protects the safety of victims and promotes accountability
 - The accuser and the accused are entitled to the same opportunities to have others present during a disciplinary proceeding and

The proposed changes in **yellow highlighting** are from the Policy & Procedure Service's Legal Updates 25 (November 2014), 26 (April 2015), and 27 (October 2015).

Date Approved: SPC 12/15/09; Revised: 5/7/13; Revised: 10/21/14

222 223

184

185

186

187 188

189

190

191 192

193

194

195 196

197

198 199

200201202

∠∪4

205

206

207

208

209

210

211212

213

214215

216

217

218

219

220 221

224 225

234 235

246

241

257

258

259 260 261

262 263 264

265

Office of Primary Responsibility: Student Services

- Both the accuser and the accused must be informed of the outcome of any institutional disciplinary proceeding resulting from an alleged sex offense, domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, the procedures for the accused and victim to appeal the results of the disciplinary proceeding, of any chances to the results that occurs prior to the time that such results become final, and when such results become final. Compliance with this paragraph does not violate the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act. For the purposes of this paragraph. the outcome of a disciplinary proceeding means the final determination with respect to the alleged domestic violence, dating violence, sex offense, or stalking and any sanction that is imposed against the accused
- A description of the sanctions the campus may impose following a final determination by a campus disciplinary proceeding regarding rape, acquaintance rape, or other forcible or non-forcible sex offenses, domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking

Education and Prevention Information

Regarding Education and Prevention Information, tThe Palomar College Police Department shall:

- Provide, as part of the District's established on-campus orientation program. education, and prevention information about domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and er stalking. The information shall be developed in collaboration with District-based and community-based victim advocacy organizations, and shall include the District's sexual assault policy and prevention strategies including empowerment programming for victim prevention. awareness raising campaigns, primary prevention, bystander intervention, and risk reduction.
- Post sexual violence prevention and education information on the campus internet website regarding domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and stalking.

For additional information and resources on sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, and stalking in the educational/campus environment, the Department of Justice has established a clearinghouse of resources geared towards colleges and universities, which can be accessed at the California Attorney General's website.

Also see BP/AP 3430 titled Prohibition of Harassment and AP 3435 titled Discrimination and & Harassment: Complaints, Investigations, and Awareness Training.

The proposed changes in yellow highlighting are from the Policy & Procedure Service's Legal Updates 25 (November 2014), 26 (April 2015), and 27 (October 2015).

FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES REV 5/7/18

BP 6250 BUDGET MANAGEMENT

References:

Title 5 Sections 58307 and 58308

The budget shall be managed in accordance with Title 5 and the California Community Colleges Chancellor's Office as prescribed by the Budget and Accounting Manual (BAM). Budget revisions shall be made only in accordance with these policies and as provided by law.

All income accruing to the District in excess of the amounts required to finance the total proposed expenditures as shown in the budget of the District shall be added to the ending fund balance of the District.

The District's unrestricted general reserves shall be no less than 5% which is a prudent reserve as defined by the California Community College Chancellor's Office.

The ending fund balance shall consist of the following:

Unrestricted General Reserve (Fund 11 General Fund)

- Governing Board Reserve is currently set at seven five percent of the total unrestricted general fund expenditures
- **Designated Reserve** funds designated by Governing Board action
- Other Reserves funds to cover general and other unanticipated needs

Restricted Reserve (Fund 12 Restricted Fund)

• Funds restricted by source of revenue

A transfer from the Governing Board Reserve may be approved by the Vice President for Finance Chief Financial Officer, and a resolution providing for this transfer must be submitted to the Governing Board for ratification and be approved by two-thirds vote of the members of the Governing Board.

Transfers between expenditure classifications may be approved by the Vice President for Finance Chief Financial Officer, and must be submitted to the Governing Board for ratification and be approved by a majority vote of the members of the Governing Board.

See AP 6250 titled Budget Management.

Date Adopted: 5/13/2008; Revised: 3/10/2015; Revised: (Replaces all previous versions of BP 6250.)

FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES REV 5/7/18

AP 6250 BUDGET MANAGEMENT

References:

Title 5 Sections 58305, 58307, and 58308

The Vice President for Finance Chief Financial Officer, is responsible for ensuring the budget management process conforms to the Title 5 regulations. Title 5 requires that budget management conforms to the following minimum standards:

- Total amounts budgeted as the proposed expenditure for each major classification of expenditures shall be the maximum expended for that classification for the academic year, except as specifically authorized by the Governing Board.
- Transfers may be made from the Governing Board Reserve to any expenditure classification by written resolution of the Governing Board and must be approved by a two-thirds vote of the members of the Governing Board.
- Transfers may be made between expenditure classifications by written resolution of the Governing Board and may be approved by a majority of the members of the Governing Board.
- Excess funds must be added to the general reserve of the District and are not available for appropriation except by resolution of the Governing Board setting forth the need according to major classification.

Transfers may not be made from the Restricted Reserve to any other reserve.

Transfers from the Designated Reserve to the Unrestricted General Reserve or the Other Reserves require written resolution of the Governing Board and shall be approved by a majority of the members of the Governing Board.

In addition, the California Community Colleges Chancellor's Office requires budget and financial reporting which includes the submission of appropriate forms (e.g. CCFS 311) according to established deadlines.

Office of Primary Responsibility: Finance and Administrative Services

INSTRUCTION

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES

REV 4/21/18 Unique/propose deletion

2

3 4 5

7 8 9

References:

No references

11 12

13

14

10

6

In matters relating directly to instruction, the faculty member involved, the department chairperson/director, the division dean, and the Assistant Superintendent/Vice President for Instruction should be contacted, in that order.

BP 4005 FORMAL COMMUNICATION OF MATTERS OF

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
1/

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES
REV 5-18-18 for deletion

BP 4023 COURSE OUTLINE OF RECORD

References:

Title 5 Sections 55002, 55003, 55044, 55050, 55130, 55150, and 55151, 55152, and 55153 (NOTE: *Title 5 Sections 55152 and 55153 were repealed in 2011*).

All courses listed in the Palomar College Catalog must have an current and accessible official course outline of record compliant with Title 5 Section 55002, on file in the Office of the Assistant Superintendent/Vice President for Instruction.

14 15

Also see AP 4260 Prerequisites, Co-requisites, and Advisories

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	
2 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 45	

INSTRUCTI	ONAL	SER	VICES
	5/18/	18 to	delete

AP 4023 COURSE OUTLINE OF RECORD

References:

Title 5 Sections 55002, 55003, 55044, 55050, 55130, 55150, 55151, 55152, 55153, and 55200 et seq. (NOTE: Title 5 Sections 55152 and 55153 were repealed in 2011).

For credit courses, tThe following information must be contained in each course outline for A.A. of record.

Degree applicable credit courses:

- Course number and title
- Unit value
- Expected Total number of contact hours for the course as a whole inclusive of lecture, laboratory, and out of class hours
- Conditions of enrollment pPrerequisites, co-requisites, and advisories
- Basic skills requirements
- Catalog description
- Specific course objectives
- Content in terms of specific body of knowledge (outline)
- Required reading
- Critical thinking
- Required writing
- Outside assignments
- Instructional and evaluation methodology
- Methods of instruction

Additional District requirements for credit course outlines of record for A.A. Degree applicable credit courses include:

- Minimum and maximum number of weekly lecture semester hours and/or minimum number of weekly laboratory semester hours
- Minimum and maximum number of weekly laboratory hours
- Minimum and maximum number of weekly out-of-class hours
- Open entry/Open exit category
- At least one textbook no older than five years of the current year
- Course repetition, if applicable
- Grading restrictions, such as Pass/No Pass Only or Graded Only
- Effective term
- Minimum qualifications
- Course cross listings

Yellow = CCLC recommended. Blue = internal

Date Approved: SPC 2/15/2011; Revised:

(Replaces former Palomar Procedure 303)

4	7
4	8
4	9
5	0
5	1
5	2
5	
5	4
5	5
5 5	6
5	7
5	
5	
6	
6	
6	
6	
6	4
6	5
6	6
6	
6	8
6	9
7	
7	1
7. 7.	2
7	3
7	
7	5
7	6
7	7
7	
7	
8	
8	
8	
8	
8	
8	
8	6

88

46

The following information mu	t be contained in each course outline for Nnon-A.A
Degree applicable credit cour	ies:

- Course number and title
- Unit value
- Expected number of contact hours for the course as a whole
- Prerequisites, co-requisites, and advisories
- Basic skills requirements
- Catalog description
- Specific course objectives
- Content in terms of specific body of knowledge
- Required reading
- Critical thinking
- Required writing
- Outside assignments
- Instructional and evaluation methodology

Additional District requirements for course outlines for non-A.A. Degree applicable credit courses include:

- Minimum number of weekly lecture semester hours and/or minimum number of weekly laboratory semester hours
- Open entry/open exit category
- A list of readings including one textbook no older than five years of the current year
- Course repetition, if applicable
- Grading restrictions, such as Pass/No Pass Only or Graded Only

For noncredit courses, tThe following information must be contained in each course outline of record for a Non-credit course:

- Course number and title
- Contact hours, advisories, or course entry expectations (optional)
- Catalog description
- Total contact hours for the course as a whole (outside of class hours not required)
- Objectives
- Content in terms of specific body of knowledge (outline)
- Methods of instruction
- Examples of assignments and/or activities (out of class work is optional)
- Methods of evaluation (grades optional)

Yellow = CCLC recommended. Blue = internal

8° Course outlines are reviewed by the program/department and division dean on a cycle as recommended by the Curriculum Committee and consistent with Title 5.
91

Distance Education (Also see AP 4105 Distance Education)

92 93 94

95

Definition

Distance education means instruction in which the instructor and student are separated by distance and interact through the assistance of communication technology.

96 97 98

99

100

101

Any portion of a course conducted through distance education includes regular effective contact between instructor and students, through group or individual meetings, orientation and review sessions, supplemental seminar or study sessions, field trips, library workshops, telephone contact, correspondence, voice mail, e-mail, or other activities.

102 103 104

Separate Course Approval

If any portion of the instruction in a proposed or existing course or course section is designed to be provided through distance education in lieu of face-to-face interaction between instructor and student, the course shall be separately reviewed and approved according to the district's adopted course approval procedures.

109 110

Also see AP 4260 Prerequisites, Co-requisites, and Advisories.

111-112

Office of Primary Responsibility: Instructional Services

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES REV 5/18/18

AP 4026 PHILOSOPHY AND CRITERIA FOR INTERNATIONAL EDUCATION

Reference:

Education Code Section 66015.7

The District supports the concept of International Education. It may offer programs that include, but are not limited to, foreign study programs, faculty, and student exchanges, and other cross-cultural training and instructional opportunities. The Governing Board shall approve each program.

The District encourages programs that support learning about other cultures, global issues, and the exchange of Californians and international students and scholars. Such programs might include:

- Courses of study in as many fields as possible to increase students' understanding of global issues and cultural differences
- Courses in languages other than English to train students to communicate effectively in other cultures and to enhance their understanding of other nations' values
- Opportunities for students in all majors to participate in study abroad programs to enrich their academic training, perspectives, and personal development
- Opportunities for domestic and international students to interact effectively and routinely share their views, perceptions, and experiences in educational settings, and
- Innovative public educational forums and venues to explore global issues and showcase world cultures

Regarding international students and scholars, the District:

- Encourages the presence of qualified students from other countries with sufficient geographic diversity to inspire an appreciation for differences among cultures and a deeper understanding of the values and perspectives of other people
- Facilitates faculty exchange and collaborative partnership programs with institutions in other countries

Palomar Community College District Procedure

48	
49 50	
51	
52 53	
54	
55	

- Initiates collaborative research undertakings to address issues of global significance, and
- Recruits and retains the world's best and brightest faculty to educate California's students as globally competent citizens

For specific guidelines pertaining to study abroad courses and field courses, refer to AP 4300 titled Field Trips and Excursions.

56

57

Office of Primary Responsibility: Instructional Services

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES

BP 4030 ACADEMIC FREEDOM

References:

Education Code Section 7050 et seq.;
Title 5 Section 51023;
ACCJC Accreditation Standard I.C.7 II.A.7
ACCJC Accreditation Eligibility Requirement 20

See BP/AP 7370 titled Use of District Resources for Political Activity, BP 2716 titled Political Activity, and Article 3 of the Agreement between Palomar Faculty Federation, CFT/AFT and Palomar Community College District.

The District encourages freedom of expression and the free flow and exchange of information and ideas. The District seeks to protect academic freedom and supports free and unfettered scholarly inquiry for all constituencies.

Faculty members of Palomar College shall conduct the instructional program in accordance with principles of academic freedom of expression and inquiry within the framework of rights and responsibilities.

The District considers academic freedom, defined by its attendant rights and responsibilities, as a vital, primary force in the achievement of the aims and objectives of the institution. Academic freedom inherently involves the following rights and responsibilities:

- To research to the limit of competence and training, the assigned teaching area and its references
- To question and challenge, without fear of censorship or discipline, those actions originating from within the institution which seriously affect the total academic environment
- To introduce, within the assigned teaching area, controversial concepts, issues, and systems, subjecting these ideas to the test of reasoned inquiry
- To create free and clear intellectual atmosphere democratically maintained, encouraged, and supported by students, staff, administration, and members of the Governing Board
- To associate with those individuals or groups of one's choice without fear of censorship or discipline, unless such association is forbidden by law

Yellow = CCLC recommended, Blue = internal

54

55

56

57

58

59

- To speak or write publicly, free of prior censorship or subsequent discipline by the college or District, as a citizen on matters of public concern
- To make reasonable efforts to be accurate in public statements about college and District matters, and to indicate that they write or speak as public citizens and not as spokespersons of the institution

At no time will the inherent right of faculty members to use any of the normal channels of campus communication be abridged, nor will individual faculty members be singled out for prior censorship of their use of such channels of communication. It is understood that faculty members exercising this right will accept responsibility for both the substance and the manner of their messages. In compliance with these principles, the District encourages faculty, staff, and student involvement with others in support of candidates for offices or in the furtherance of other political activities, as long as no District resources are used for these purposes.

60 61 62

63

This policy will be published in the District catalog annually and disseminated to the employees of the District no less than annually and whenever it is amended.

1	STUDENT INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICE
2	REV 5/18/18
3	
4	BP 4045 TUTORIAL SERVICES PROGRAMS
5	
6	References:
7	Education Code Section 70902;
8	Accreditation Standard IIC
9	
10	
11	The Superintendent/President shall ensure that the District provides tutorial services
12	using resources and techniques appropriate to student needs.

AP 4045 TUTORIAL SERVICES PROGRAMS

1 2 2

STUDENT SERVICES

5/18/18

3 4

5

6

References:

Education Code Section 70902

7 8 9

10

11

12

13

Tutorial Services at Palomar College are designed to provide assistance in most academic subjects to currently enrolled Palomar College students. Students in Palomar's tutoring centers are served on a walk-in-basis and/or by appointment and must be enrolled in the course(s) for which they are seeking assistance. All tutors are carefully selected and trained in tutoring methods and learning strategies to do the best job possible in helping students achieve academic success. Services provided include:

14 15 16

17

18 19

20 21

22 23

24

- one-on-one tutoring
- group tutoring
- tutor training
- embedded tutoring
- supplemental instruction (SI)
- workshops
- end-of-semester-review sessions
- study resources
- tutoring for categorical populations
- online tutoring

252627

28

Tutoring services are provided on the San Marcos campus in various locations and at the Escondido Center in the Teaching and Learning Center.

29 30

Also see the Palomar College Catalog.

31 32

Office of Primary Responsibility: Instructional Services and Faculty Senate

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES
REV 4/21/18

BP 4060 AGREEMENTS WITH SCHOOL DISTRICTS FOR NONCREDIT AND ADULT EDUCATION

References:

Education Code Sections 8535 and 8536

Whenever a mutual agreement with a school district or other educational entity relating to responsibility for noncredit continuing education programs is required by state law, the Superintendent/President shall present an appropriate Memorandum of Understanding Agreement to the Governing Board for approval.

Date Adopted: 11/10/2009; Revised:

REV 4/21/18

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES

2 5

3 4

> 6 7

10 11 12

8 9

18

References:

AP 4060

Education Code Sections 8535 and 8536

When a Memorandum of Understanding Agreement (MOUA) is required between the District and a high school district, the Assistant Superintendent/Vice President or of Instruction or designee will meet with representatives of the high school district to delineate functions and responsibilities for noncredit or adult education. The MOUA should include courses subjects to be taught, geographic boundaries, emergency/safety procedures, on-site resources and recruitment practices.

AGREEMENTS WITH SCHOOL DISTRICTS FOR

NONCREDIT AND ADULT EDUCATION

Office of Primary Responsibility: Instructional Services

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES 1 2 **COURSE AUDITING AND AUDITING FEES** 3 **BP 4070** 4 5 Reference: 6 **Education Code Section 76370** 7 8 9 Individuals may audit courses by petition only and with the stipulations described in AP 10 4070 titled Course Auditing and Auditing Fees. The fees for auditing a course are defined on a per unit basis by the Governing Board and shall comply with the 11 restrictions pursuant to Education Code Section 76370. 12 13 14 No student auditing a course shall be permitted to change his/her enrollment to receive credit for the course. 15 16 Priority in class enrollment shall be given to students enrolled in the course for credit 17 18 toward a degree or certificate. 19 20 The auditing policy shall be published in the College Catalog and Class Schedule. 21

Date Adopted: 11/10/2009; Revised:

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES

AP 4070 COURSE AUDITING AND AUDITING FEES

Reference:

Education Code Section 76370

The District shall provide individuals the opportunity to audit college courses on a nocredit basis and only by petition when the following are met:

- Permission to audit a class is done at the discretion of the instructor and with the instructor's, department chair's, and Dean's signed permission.
- An audit student shall not be permitted to change his/her enrollment in that course to receive credit.
- With the instructor's, department chair's, and Dean's signed permission, a credit student may switch his/her enrollment to audit status provided the change is completed prior to the end of the fourth week of class for semester-length courses or prior to 30% of a class for short-term courses.
- With the instructor's, department chair's, and Dean's signed permission, a student may enroll in a class for audit at any time during a semester if he/she has not enrolled in that class for credit during the same semester.
- No student will be allowed to register in audit status prior to the first day of class.
 The first day of class refers to the actual first class meeting.
- Credit students have priority over auditing students.
- A student is charged a fee according to applicable law for auditing a class. A
 student enrolled in ten credit units or more may audit one class for free. If a
 student taking ten or more units for credit is auditing a class and drops below the
 ten-unit level, the auditing fee will be assessed.
- No fee will be assessed to Palomar College full- and part-time faculty, permanent staff, and retirees for auditing one class per semester or other session.
- Auditing fees are non-refundable unless the class being audited is cancelled or otherwise administratively altered.
- Classroom attendance of individuals auditing a class shall not be included in computing apportionment or determining class size.

Office of Primary Responsibility: Student Services

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES
REV 5/18/18

5

BP 4102 CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION PROGRAMS ADVISORY COMMITTEES

References:

Title 5 Sections 55600 et seq.;

2 Code of Federal Regulations Part 200 (The Federal Education Department General Administrative Regulations, 2nd Edition);

34 Code of Federal Regulations Part 600 (U.S. Department of Education regulations on the Integrity of Federal Student Financial Aid Programs under Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended);

ACCJC Accreditation Standard II.A.14

The District shall offer Career and Technical Education (CTE) programs that implement its occupational education and economic development missions. CTE enables individuals to reach their occupational goals and supports the local economy by providing an educated workforce. CTE will serve first-time workers, incumbent workers, and those re-entering the workforce. The District will provide programs and support services appropriate to those groups. It is the District's goal to provide up-to-date, well-equipped, industry connected programs.

The Superintendent/President shall establish procedures, consistent with federal regulations pertaining to federal financial aid eligibility, to ensure the District meets the United States Department of Education disclosure requirements whenever the District intends to add a new gainful employment program.

The Superintendent/President or designee shall ensure that all Career and Technical Education (CTE)career and technical education programs have active industry advisory committees. These committees shall be composed primarily of community members who are experts in the education, skills, techniques, innovations, and attitudes needed in specific occupational fields. Students should also be invited to participate in advisory committees.

Date Adopted: 11/10/2009; Revised:

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES REV 5/18/18

References:

AP 4102

Title 5 Sections 55600 et seq.;

 2 Code of Federal Regulations Part 200 (The Federal Education Department General Administrative Regulations, 2nd Edition):

CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION

PROGRAMS ADVISORY COMMITTEES

34 Code of Federal Regulations Part 600 (U.S. Department of Education regulations on the Integrity of Federal Student Financial Aid Programs under Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended):

ACCJC Accreditation Standard II.A.14

.3

Each career education and technical education program shall establish an advisory committee of industry experts. The committee shall meet at least once each academic year to and shall review and validate the following:

• That there is a need for the program

That job opportunities with livable wages exist for graduates of the program

• That the program does not unnecessarily duplicate, reduce or supplant offerings available in the District or the Region

Responsibility for Career and Technical Education Programs and the recruitment of advisory committee members, scheduling meetings, taking minutes, and performing other duties necessary to ensure proper functioning of the committee rests with the Vice President for Instruction or his/her designee. The responsible faculty member or Department Chair/Director of the program shall be responsible for ongoing recruitment of advisory committee members, scheduling 14 meetings, taking minutes, and

performing other duties necessary to ensure proper 15 functioning of the committee

Minutes of each meeting shall be held in an office designated by the Assistant Superintendent/Vice President of for Instruction.

Consistent with federal regulations pertaining to federal financial aid eligibility, the Vice President for Instruction will ensure that the District complies with the United States Department of Education's disclosure requirements for each of the District's gainful employment programs, by disclosing federally-mandated information about the programs to prospective students. The District shall make the required disclosures available to prospective students in promotional materials and on its website.

Yellow = CCLC recommended changes, Blue = internal

Date Approved: 09/15/2009; Revised:

(Replaces all previous versions of AP 4102-)

- The Vice President for Instruction shall establish procedures to ensure that the District meets these reporting requirements whenever the District intends to add a new gainful
- 46 employment program.

48 Office of Primary Responsibility: Instructional Services

Yellow = CCLC recommended changes, Blue = internal

18 19

20

21 22

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES REV 4/23/18

BP 4103 COOPERATIVE WORK EXPERIENCE EDUCATION

References:

Labor Code Section 3070; Title 5 Sections 55250 et seg.

The District shall establish and maintain a program of Cooperative Work Experience Education whereby students, while enrolled in college, will gain realistic learning experiences through work. A plan shall be submitted to and approved by the Governing Board State Chancellor's Office.

All laws or rules applicable to minors in employment relationships are applicable to minor students enrolled in work experience education courses.

Cooperative Work Experience Education involving apprenticeable occupations shall be consistent with the purposes of Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 3070) of Division 3 of the Labor Code and with standards established by the California Apprenticeship Council.

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES REV 5/18/18

AP 4103 COOPERATIVE WORK EXPERIENCE EDUCATION

References:

Labor Code Section 3070; Title 5 Sections 55250 et seg.

Pursuant to changes in Title 5 Section 55251, the District's existing Cooperative Work Experience (CWE) Plan has been adopted and approved by the District's Governing Board.

CWE courses may be offered in .5 unit increments as aligned with AP 4020 Program, Curriculum, and Course Development.

Changes or revisions to the CWE Plan shall be approved by the District's Governing Board prior to implementation and shall include: The District shall develop and submit a plan to the State Chancellor's Office, which includes:

- The systematic design of a program whereby the student gains realistic learning experiences through work
- A specific description of the respective responsibilities of the District, the student, the employer, and other cooperating agencies
- Guidance services
- A sufficient number of qualified academic personnel to direct the program
- Processes as developed by the supervising faculty that assure the student's onthe-job learning experiences are documented with written measurable learning objectives
- Criteria as developed by the supervising faculty by which the student is evaluated and the basis for awarding grades and credit is described
- Adequate clerical and instructional services
- A statement that the District has officially adopted the plan, subject to approval by the Governing Board

In addition, procedures shall address <u>CWE processes include</u> the maintenance of records that include the type and units of work experience in which the student is enrolled, where employed, job held, basis for determining student qualifications,

Yellow = CCLC recommended. Blue = internal.

Date Approved: SPC 05/6/2009; Revised:

(Replaces former Palomar Procedure 325 and all previous versions of AP 4103.)

41	statement of student hours worked, evaluation of performance, and, if required, a work
48	permit was issued.
49	
50	Supervising faculty must maintain records, in accordance with AP 3310 Records
51	Retention and Destruction that show consultation with the employer and the student,
52	evaluation of the student's achievement, and the final grade.
53	Office of Primary Responsibility: Instructional Services

Yellow = CCLC recommended. Blue = internal.

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES **REV. 5/4/18**

4

AP 4104 WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT/CONTRACT EDUCATION

5 6

References:

7 8

Education Code Sections 78016, 78020, 78022; Title 5 Section 55170

9 10 11

The District may contract for instructional classes to be offered at the request of public or private agencies or groups.

12 13 14

15

16

17

Contract Education is defined as those situations in which a community college district contracts with a public or private entity for the purposes of providing instruction or services or both by the community college. Such courses offered through contract education may be:

18 19

20 21

22 23

24

25

Degree-Applicable Credit Course: A course which has been designated as appropriate to the associate degree in accordance with the requirements of title 5, section 55062, and which has been recommended by the college and/or district curriculum committee and approved by the district governing board as a collegiate course meeting the needs of the students (title 5, section 55002). Nondegree-Applicable Credit Course: A credit course designated by the governing board as not applicable to the associate degree which, at a minimum, is recommended by the college and/or district curriculum committee (the committee described and established under the subdivision (a)(1) of title, 5 section 55001) and is approved by the district governing board (title 5, section 55001).

26 27 28

29 30

31

32

Noncredit Course: A course which, at a minimum, is recommended by the college and/or district curriculum committee (the committee described and established under subdivision (a)(1) of title 5, section 55002) and approved by the district governing board as a course meeting the needs of enrolled students (title 5, section 55002).

33 34 35

Community Services Offering: A fee-supported, not-for-credit community services class authorized pursuant to Education Code section 78300 and approved pursuant to subdivision (d) of title 5, section 55002, for which state apportionment is not claimed and credit is not awarded (title 5, section 55000).

37 38 39

40

41

36

The District may provide educational, training and related services to public and private organizations or individuals by means of contract education in those circumstances where the District is prohibited from using public funds to provide the requested training or services, or where public funds are not available to provide the training or services.

42 43

> Per CCLC this procedure is *legally advised*. Yellow = CCLC recommended. Blue = internal

Date Adopted:

The Palomar Community College District is dedicated to meeting local needs and serving all segments of the community, including local businesses and economic 45 development entities. Contract education is consistent with, and complementary, to the 46 47 overall mission of Palomar College. It is viewed as another means for meeting the educational and training needs of the District's constituencies. 48 49 50 The District's participation in contract education programs or classes shall be the 51 prerogative of the Palomar Community College District Governing Board and the 52 Governing Board shall ratify all such programs and classes. 53 54 Approval of Contract Education Curriculum and Course Offerings 55 Courses and workshops are reviewed and approved by the Associate Dean of 56 Workforce Development and Extended Studies, in conjunction with the entity requesting 57 the course(s), to ensure identified community needs are met and, where applicable, standards defined by state, national, or contracting entities are met. In these instances, 58 the course content is measured against learning objectives provided by these entities. 59 60 Financial Support of Contract Education (Education Code Section78021(b)) 61 The contracting community college district or districts shall recover, from all revenue 62 sources, including, but not necessarily limited to, public and private sources, or any 63 64 combination thereof, an amount equal to, but not less than, the actual costs, including 65 administrative costs, incurred in providing these programs or training. 6 07 Operation of the Contract Education Program Overall administrative responsibility for the operation of the Contract Education program. 68 will rest with the Vice President for Instruction. 69 70 The Office of Workforce Development and Extended Studies shall administer the 71 program and establish development, review, approval, and evaluation processes and 72 73 criteria for the program.

74 75

76

Office of Primary Responsibility: Instructional Services

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES

BP 4226 MULTIPLE AND OVERLAPPING ENROLLMENTS

Reference:

Title 5 Section 55007

The Superintendent/President shall establish procedures to ensure that students may enroll in two or more sections of the same credit course during the same term only if the length of the course provides that the student is not enrolled in more than one section at any given time.

12 13 14

15

16

10

11

The Superintendent/President shall establish procedures to ensure that students may enroll in two or more courses where the meeting times overlap only under the conditions specified in Title 5 Section 55007.

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES
REV 9/7/18

AP 4226 MULTIPLE AND OVERLAPPING ENROLLMENTS

Reference:

Title 5 Section 55007

A student may not enroll in two or more sections of the same credit course during the same term unless the length of the course provides no overlap of sections.

A student may not enroll in two or more courses where the meeting times for the courses overlap, unless:

- The Request for Approval of Overlapping Classes (form) is completed in the Instructional Services Office
- The student provides a valid justification, other than mere scheduling convenience, of the need for a partial overlapping schedule
- The student, the instructor, the department chair, and the division dean must sign the form approve the request
- The student must make up any missed class time at some other time during the same week under the supervision of the instructor of the course for the duration of the overlapping period.

Office of Primary Responsibility: Instructional Services

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES
REV 9-7-18

AP 4227 REPEATABLE COURSES

References:

Title 5 Sections 55040, 55041, 55253, and 56029

Only the following types of courses may be designated as repeatable:

- Courses for which repetition is necessary to meet the major requirements of California State University (CSU) or University of California (UC) for completion of a bachelor's degree
- Intercollegiate athletics courses
- Intercollegiate academic or vocational competition courses. Such courses may be repeated no more than four times for semester courses or six times for quarter courses

The District must identify and designate such repeatable courses in its catalog.

Under special circumstances, students may repeat courses in which a C or better grade was earned.

Students are allowed to repeat a course without petition when repetition is necessary to enable that student to meet a legally mandated training requirement as a condition of volunteer or continued paid employment. Students can repeat such courses any number of times, even if they receive a grade of C or better; however, the grade received by the student each time will be included in the calculations of the student's grade point average.

Students may petition to repeat a course as a result of a significant change in industry or licensure standards such that repetition of the course is necessary for the student's employment or licensure. Students can repeat such courses any number of times.

To enhance skills and proficiencies, students may repeat activity courses where it is found that the course content differs each time it is offered. Activity courses are defined as career/technical courses where the content differs each time the course is offered, but the primary educational activity remains the same. Examples of activity courses that qualify as repeatable courses include physical education and courses in music, fine arts, theater, and dance. Absent substandard academic work, courses may not be repeated for more than three semesters or five quarters including summers and intersessions.

Yellow = CCLC recommended.

Date Approved: SPC 12/1/09; Revised:

 Students may enroll in activity courses in physical education, visual arts, or performing arts. Such courses may not be repeated for more than four semesters four semesters or six quarters. This limit applies even if the student receives a substandard grade or "W" during one or more enrollment or if a student petitions for repetition for repetition due to extenuating circumstances.

Students with disabilities making measurable progress can repeat a special course, designed for students with disabilities any number of times when an individualized determination verifies that such repetition is required as a disability-related accommodation for the student for one of the reasons specified in Title 5 Section 56029.

Students are allowed to repeat an eccupational Cooperative Wwork Eexperience course. any number of times as long as they do not exceed the limit on the number of units of Cooperative Work Experience set forth in Title 5 Section 55253(a); however, the grade received by the student each time will be included in calculations of the student's grade point average. Where only one occupational work experience course is offered subject to the above conditions, students may be permitted to repeat this course any number of times as long as they do not exceed the limit on the number of units of occupational work experience set forth in Title 5 Section 55253(a).

A student may file a petition on the basis that the student's previous grade was, at least in part, the result of extenuating circumstances. Extenuating circumstances are verified cases of accidents, illness, or other circumstances beyond the control of the student.

The District shall develop and implement a mechanism to allow it to properly monitor course repetition.

Office of Primary Responsibility: Student Services

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES

3

4 5

Reference:

AP 4228

6 7 Title 5 Section 55043

8 9 10

With an approved petition, students may be permitted to repeat courses in which a "C" or better grade was earned where there was a significant lapse of time, no fewer than 36 months, since the grade was obtained and:

COURSE REPETITION – SIGNIFICANT LAPSE OF TIME

12 13

11

The District has established a recency requirement for a course or program; or

14 15

16

 An institution of higher education to which a student wishes to transfer has established a recency requirement that the student cannot satisfy without repeating the course;

17 18 19

20 21

22

When a student needs to repeat an activity active participatory experience course in physical education, or visual or performing arts, or that is related in content due to a significant lapse of time, each repetition attempt will be counted toward the established repetition limits. However, if a student has already exhausted the number of permitted repetitions, then one additional repetition may be permitted by petition.

23 24 25

When a course is repeated due to a significant lapse of time, the District shall disregard the previous grade and credit when computing a student's grade point average.

26 27 28

Students may secure the required petition at the Records Office.

29 30

Office of Primary Responsibility: Student Services

22 3 24

25

26 27

28

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES
Rev. 3/17/18

COURSE REPETITION - VARIABLE UNITS

Reference:

AP 4229

Title 5 Section 55044

Students may be permitted to enroll in variable unit open-entry/open-exit courses as many times as necessary to enable them to complete the entire curriculum of the course once.

Students may not repeat variable unit open-entry/open-exit courses unless:

- the course is required for legally mandated training
- the course is a special class for students with disabilities which the student needs
 to be repeated for one of the reasons described in Title 5 Section 56029
- repetition of the course to retake a portion of the curriculum is justified by extenuating circumstances pursuant to Title 5 Section 55045; or
- the student wishes to repeat the course to alleviate substandard work recorded for a portion of the curriculum as authorized pursuant to Title 5 Section 55042

A student may not enroll in a variable unit open-entry/open exit active participatory course in physical education, visual arts, or performing arts more than one time.

This procedure is legally advised by CCLC.

1	INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICE
2	BP 4231 GRADE CHANGES
4 5	References:
6	Education Code Sections 76224 and 76232;
7	Title 5 Section 55025
8	
9	
10	The Superintendent/President shall implement procedures to assure the accuracy and
11	integrity of all grades awarded by faculty. The procedures shall include, but not
12 13	necessarily be limited to, the following:
14	 Assurance that in the absence of mistake, bad faith, fraud, or incompetence, the
15	grades awarded by faculty shall be final
16	grades awarded by racarry criain be initial
17	 Procedures for students to challenge the correctness of a grade
18	
19	 The installation of security measures to protect grade records and grade storage
20	systems from unauthorized access
21	
22	 Limitations on access to grade records and grade storage systems
23 24	Discipline for students or staff who are found, following a due process
25	investigation, to have gained access to grade records without proper
26	authorization or to have changed grades without proper authorization
27	3 - g - g - g - g - g - g - g - g - g -
28	 Notice to students, faculty, transfer institutions, accreditation agencies and law
29	enforcement agencies, as appropriate, if unauthorized access to grade records
30	and grade storage systems is discovered to have occurred
31	Alexander DD 2040 Milled December Detention and Destruction AD 4004 Milled Const.
32 33	Also see BP 3310 titled Records Retention and Destruction, AP 4231 titled Grade
33	Changes, and BP/AP 5040 titled Student Records

Date Adopted: 6/12/2012; Revised: (Replaces all previous versions of BP 4231.)

4

5

6 7 8

9 10

11 12 13

15 16 17

14

> 26 27 28

29 30 31

32

33 34 35

36

37

38 39 40

5

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES REV 9-7-18

AP 4231 **GRADE CHANGES**

Education Code Sections 76224 and 76232;

Title 5 Section 55025

Changing Grades

References:

The instructor of the course shall determine the grade to be awarded to each student. The determination of the student's grade by the instructor shall be final in the absence of mistake, fraud, bad faith, or incompetence per Title 5 Section 55025. "Mistake" may include, but is not limited to, clerical errors and errors made by an instructor in calculating a student's grade. "Fraud" may include, but is not limited to, inaccurate recording or change of a grade by any person who gains access to grade records without authorization.

Removal or correction of a grade shall only be done pursuant to Education Code Section 76232 or by an alternative method which will ensure that students receive a reasonable and objective review of the requested grade change. Provisions shall be made to allow another faculty member to substitute for the instructor if the student has filed a discrimination complaint, if the instructor is not available, or where the District determines that it is possible that there may have been gross misconduct by the original instructor. The Palomar College Student Grade Dispute Policy and Procedure is available on Faculty Senate's web page and the Instructional Services web page, under Student Forms.

No grade placed in a student's academic record may be changed unless the instructor submits a Grade Change Form to the Records Office stating the reason for the change. All changes or modifications to a student's record must be requested no later than three years from the semester in question. Registration records are maintained only for a three-year period.

Security of Student Records

- No one without proper authorization may obtain access to student grade records. These measures are installed as part of any computerized grade data storage system.
- The measures include, but are not necessarily limited to, password protection for all student grade databases, locking mechanisms for computer stations from which grade databases can be viewed, and strict limits on the number of persons who are authorized to change student grades.

- Persons authorized to change grades pursuant to District policy shall be
 designated by the <u>Senior</u> Director of Enrollment Services and shall be regular
 full-time employees of the <u>Ddistrict</u>. Grade changes will occur only following the
 submission of the signed and approved grade change form and/or a signed and
 approved petition form and shall be authorized by the faculty member (or
 substitute faculty member.)
- Any person who discovers that grades have been changed by someone other
 than the persons authorized to do so shall notify the <u>Senior</u> Director of
 Enrollment Services or Supervisor of Evaluations and Records immediately.
 The <u>Senior</u> Director of Enrollment Services or Supervisor of Evaluations and
 Records shall immediately take steps to lock the grade storage system while an
 investigation is conducted.
- If any student's grade record is found to have been changed without proper authorization, the District will notify, as appropriate, 1) the student; 2) the instructor who originally awarded the grade; 3) any educational institution to which the student has transferred; 4) the accreditation agency; and 5) local law enforcement authorities.
- Whenever a grade is changed for any reason, corrected transcripts will be sent to any educational institution upon student request
- Any student or employee who is found to have gained access to grade recording systems without proper authorization or who is found to have changed any grade without proper authority shall be subject to discipline in accordance with the District's policies and procedures.
- Any person who is found to have gained access to grade recording systems
 without proper authorization or who is found to have changed any grade without
 proper authority or has willfully modified a student record transcript shall be
 reported to the appropriate law enforcement agency having jurisdiction over the
 college where the incident occurred.

Also see BP/AP 3310 titled Records Retention and Destruction as well as BP/AP 5040 titled Student Records and Directory Information

Office of Primary Responsibility: Student Services

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES 5/18/18

AP 4233 COURSE CONTENT AND GRADING SYSTEM

References:

Title 5 Sections 55002 and 55025

Each faculty member is responsible for informing students in writing of the course content and grading system for each class within the first two class meetings. This information must be consistent with the official course outline. A current copy of the information that is provided to students should be on file in the Department/Program Office.

Suggested information includes:

- Grading policy
 - How are course letter grades, as described in the official course outline, determined?
 - What kinds of tests, quizzes, skills demonstrations, or other assignments are given, and what is their value in determining the final grade?
 - Is homework given and graded?
 - Is attendance or class participation included in the grade?
 - How is the withdrawal policy as presented in the District catalog and class schedule applied, and what are the significant dates related to withdrawal?
 - Is the course eligible for pass/no pass grading?
- General course outline
- Course requisites or expected entry skills
- Required and recommended texts or readings
- Required and recommended equipment or supplies
- Office hours, and telephone number, and email address
- A statement regarding academic integrity and consequences for violations

Office of Primary Responsibility: Instructional Services

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES

BP 4250 PROBATION, DISMISSAL, AND READMISSION

References:

Education Code Section 70902 <u>subdivision</u> (b)(3); Title 5 Sections 550301-55034

This policy addresses academic achievement and progress. The policy that addresses violations of the Student Code of Conduct is BP/AP 5500 titled Standards of Student Conduct. Further information regarding Standards of Conduct is available in the Office of Student Affairs.

Warning or Probation

The college has established two levels of probation for students whose academic progress is substandard: warning and probation. A student is on "warning" in the first semester of probation. A student is on "probation" in subsequent semesters. A student shall be placed on academic warning or probation if heler she as attempted a minimum of 12 semester units of work and has a grade point average of less than a "C" (2.0).

A student shall be placed on progress warning or probation if he/ or she has enrolled in a total of at least 12 semester units and the percentage of all units in which the student has enrolled for which entries of "W," "I," "NC," and "NP" were recorded reaches or exceeds fifty percent (50%).

A student on academic warning or probation shall be removed from warning or probation when the student's accumulated grade point average is 2.0 or higher. A student on progress warning or probation shall be removed from probation when the percentage of units in the categories of "W," "I," "NC," and "NP" grades drops below fifty percent (50%).

Dismissal

<u>Pursuant to Title 5 Section 55033</u>, <u>aA</u> student who is on academic probation shall be subject to dismissal if the student has earned a cumulative grade point average of less than 2.0 1.75 in all units attempted in each of three consecutive semesters.

A student who is on progress probation shall be subject to dismissal if the cumulative percentage of units in which the student has been enrolled for which entries of "W," "I," "NC," and "NP" are recorded in at least three consecutive semesters reaches or exceeds fifty percent (50%).

Gray = Legal Update 32 (April 2018)

Palomar Community College District Policy

A student who is subject to dismissal may submit a written appeal in compliance with administrative procedures. Dismissal may be postponed and the student continued on probation if the student can demonstrate extenuating circumstances.

46 47 48

49

50

51

52

45

Readmission

A student who has been dismissed may request reinstatement after an absence of one semester or an appeal that indicates extenuating circumstances have changed. Readmission may be granted, denied, or postponed according to criteria contained in administrative procedures.

53 54 55

56

The Superintendent/President shall develop procedures for the implementation of this policy that comply with the Title 5 requirements.

Gray = Legal Update 32 (April 2018)

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES

3 4

References:

BP 4260

5 6 7

Title 5 Sections 55000 and 55003

8 9

10

11 12

13

14

15

16

17

18

The Governing Board is authorized to establish pre-requisites, co-requisites, and advisories on recommended preparation for courses in the curriculum. For these determinations, the Board will rely primarily on the Faculty Senate through the Curriculum Committee. All such pre-requisites, co-requisites, and advisories shall be established in accordance with the standards set out in Title 5. Any pre-requisites, corequisites, or advisories shall be necessary and appropriate for achieving the purpose for which they are established. The procedures shall include the method in which a pre-requisite or co-requisite may be challenged by a student on grounds permitted by law. Pre-requisites, co-requisites, and advisories shall be identified in District publications available to students.

PRE-REQUISITES, CO-REQUISITES, AND ADVISORIES

REV 9-7-18

1 2 3

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES

4 5

References:

AP 4260

7 8

6

Title 5 Sections 55000 et seq.

9 10

11

12

13

14

15 16

17

Prerequisites, co-requisites, advisories, and limitations are necessary to ensure that students succeed in their coursework and have access to the courses they require. It is important to have prerequisites in place where they are a vital factor in maintaining academic standards. It is also necessary to ensure that pre-requisites, co-requisites, advisories, and limitations do not constitute unjustifiable obstacles to student access and success. Therefore, to foster the appropriate balance between these two concerns, the Education Code requires that prerequisites, co-requisites, advisories, and limitations be established based solely on content review or content review with statistical validation.

PRE-REQUISITES, CO-REQUISITES, AND ADVISORIES

18 19 20

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES

21 22

3

24

25

Information in the Catalog and Class Schedule

The District shall provide the following explanations both in the District Catalog and in the class schedule:

26 27 28 Definitions of pre-requisites, co-requisites, and limitations on enrollment including the differences among them and the specific pre-requisites, co-requisites, and limitations on enrollment that have been established.

Procedures for a student to challenge pre-requisites, co-requisites, and limitations on enrollment and circumstances under which a student is encouraged to make such a challenge. The information about challenges must include, at a minimum, the specific process including any deadlines, the various types of challenge that are established in law, and any additional types of challenge permitted by the District.

Definitions of advisories, the right of a student to choose to take a course without meeting the advisory, and circumstances under which a student is encouraged to exercise that right.

38

37

Definitions of contract course, co-requisite, noncredit basic skills course, nondegree-applicable basic skills courses, pre-requisites, and satisfactory grade.

39 40

Curriculum Review Process

41 42 43

44

The curriculum review process shall at a minimum be in accordance with all of the following:

Establish a Curriculum Committee and its membership in a manner that is mutually agreeable to the District administration and the Faculty Senate.

Yellow = CCLC recommended.

Date Approved: SPC 09/15/2009; Revised: 3/7/2017; Revised: (Replaces all previous versions of AP 4260)

- Establish pre-requisites, co-requisites, and advisories only upon the
 recommendation of the Faculty Senate except that the Faculty Senate may
 delegate this task to the Curriculum Committee without forfeiting its rights or
 responsibilities under Title 5 Sections 53200-53204 and within the limits set forth
 in Title 5 Section 55003. Certain limitations on enrollment must be established in
 the same manner.
- Establish pre-requisites, co-requisites, advisories, and limitations on enrollment only if:
 - The Curriculum Committee and Faculty Senate follow the Requisite Approval Procedure as identified by the Curriculum Committee and housed on the Curriculum website.

Program Review

As a regular part of the program review process or at least every six years, except that the prerequisites and co-requisites for <u>career and technical education</u> (vocational) courses or programs shall be reviewed every two years, the District shall review each pre-requisite, co-requisite, or advisory to establish that each is still supported by the faculty in the discipline or department and by the Curriculum Committee and is still in compliance with all other provisions of this procedure and with the law. Any pre-requisite or co-requisite that is still supported shall be reviewed promptly thereafter to assure that it is in compliance with all other provisions of this procedure and with the law.

Review of Individual Courses

If the student's enrollment in a course or program is to be contingent on his/her having met the proposed pre-requisite(s) or co-requisite(s), then such a pre-requisite or co-requisite must be established as follows. If enrollment is not blocked, then what is being established is not a pre-requisite or co-requisite but, rather, an advisory and must be identified as such in the schedule and catalog. Establishing advisories does not require all the following steps:

- Pre-requisites and Co-requisites
 - Levels of Scrutiny: Pre-requisites and co-requisites must meet the requirements of at least one of the following subsections:
 - a) The Standard Pre-requisites or Co-requisites: The District may establish satisfactory completion of a course as pre-requisite or co-requisite for another course provided that, in addition to obtaining the review of the faculty in the discipline or department and the Curriculum Committee as provided above, the District specifies as part of the course outline of record at least six of the campuses of the University of California (UC) and the California State University (CSU) which reflect in their catalogs that they offer the equivalent course with the equivalent pre-requisite(s) or co-requisite(s), per Title 5 Section 55003 g1 and g2 of Title V. Any combination of University of California UC campuses and California State University CSU campuses is acceptable in satisfaction of this requirement.

b) Sequential Courses Within and Across Disciplines: A course may be established as a pre-requisite or co-requisite for another course

provided that, in addition to the review by faculty in the department or discipline and by the Curriculum Committee as described above, skills, concepts, and/or information taught in the first course are presupposed in the second course, and a list of the specific skills and/or knowledge a student must possess in order to be ready to take the second course is included in its outline of record.

- courses in Communication or Computation Skills: Pre-requisites establishing communication or computational skill requirements may not be established across the entire curriculum unless established on a course by course basis. A course in communication or computation skills, or eligibility for enrollment in such a course, may be established as a pre-requisite or co-requisite for any course other than another course in communication or computation skills if, in addition to the review by the faculty in the discipline or department and by the Curriculum Committee as provided above, the following is also done:
 - A list of the specific skills a student must possess in order to be ready to take the course is included in the course outline of record; and
 - 2. Research is conducted as provided above. The pre-requisite or co-requisite may be established for a period of not more than two years while the research is being conducted provided that a determination is made that a student who lacks the particular skills is highly unlikely to receive a satisfactory grade because a sufficient percentage of the grade is directly dependent on these skills. This determination must be approved both by the faculty in the discipline and by the Curriculum Committee as provided above and must be based on a review of the syllabus as well as samples of tests and other assignments on which the grade is based. The faculty workgroup will convene, complete required worksheets and summarize meeting agreements in the curriculum management system in bullet form. Worksheets will be housed in Research and Planning, and the Curriculum Committee requisites subcommittee will review in the curriculum management system.
- d) Cut Scores and Pre-requisites: Whether or not research is required to establish a pre-requisite, data collected to validate assessment instruments and cut-scores is always relevant to reviewing the prerequisites for the associated courses. If such data are insufficient to establish the cut-scores, any course pre-requisites established for the

same course or courses may not be printed in subsequent catalogs and schedules nor enforced in subsequent semesters until the problems are resolved, and sufficient data exist to establish the cut scores. In such a case, the collection of these data shall be done in the manner prescribed above in addition to other requirements of law. Such a pre-requisite may be changed to an advisory while the problems are being resolved.

- e) Programs: In order to establish a pre-requisite for a program, the proposed pre-requisite must be approved as provided for a course pre-requisite in regard to at least one course that is required as part of the program.
- f) Health and Safety: A pre-requisite or co-requisite may be established provided that, in addition to the review by faculty in the department or division and by the Curriculum Committee as provided above:
 - The course for which the pre-requisite is proposed is one in which the student might endanger his/her own health and safety or the health and safety of others; and
 - The pre-requisite is that the student possesses what is
 necessary to protect his/her health and safety and the health
 and safety of others before entering the course.
- g) Recency and Other Measures of Readiness: Recency and other measures of readiness may be established as a pre-requisite or co-requisite only if, in addition to the review by the faculty in the discipline or department and by the Curriculum Committee as provided above, the procedures for establishing recency and other measures of readiness are followed. These procedures are established by the Curriculum Committee and are housed on the Curriculum website.
- Additional Rules: Title 5 Section 55202 specifies additional rules, which are to be considered part of this document as though reproduced here.

Advisories on Recommended Preparation:

The District may recommend that a student meet a standard of readiness at entry only if recommended by the faculty in the discipline or department and by the Curriculum Committee as provided in above. This process is required whether the District used to describe such recommendations in its catalog or schedule as " pre-requisites," or "recommended," or by any other term.

220

221

222

223

224 5

TQ0

ENROLLMENT MANAGEMENT

Implementing Pre-requisites, Co-requisites, and Limitations on Enrollment: Implementation of pre-requisites, co-requisites, and limitations on enrollment must be done in a consistent manner and not left exclusively to the classroom instructor. Every attempt shall be made to enforce all conditions a student must meet to be enrolled in the course through the registration process so that a student is not permitted to enroll unless he/she has met all the conditions. [Title 5 Section 55003(o)]

187

Limitations on Enrollment:

The types of limitation on enrollment specified below may only be established through the curriculum review process by the discipline or department faculty and the Curriculum Committee specified above including the requirement to review them again at least every six years; for example, as part of program review. The following requirements must also be met in order to establish these particular limitations on enrollment.

195

- Performance Courses: The District may establish audition or try-out as a limitation on enrollment for courses that include public performance or intercollegiate competition such as, but not limited to; band, orchestra, theater, competitive speech, chorus, journalism, dance, and intercollegiate athletics provided that:
 - For any certificate or associate degree requirement which can be met by taking this course, there is another course or courses which satisfy the same requirement; and
 - o The District includes in the course outline of record a list of each certificate or associate degree requirement that the course meets and of the other course or courses which meet the same requirement.

Limitations on enrollment established as provided for performance courses shall be reviewed during program review or at least every six years to determine whether the audition or try-out process is having a disproportionate impact on any historically under-represented group and, if so, a plan shall be adopted to seek to remedy the disproportionate impact. If disproportionate impact has been found, the limitation on enrollment may not be printed in subsequent catalogs or schedules nor enforced in any subsequent term until such a plan has been endorsed by the department and the District administration and put into effect.

Honors Courses: A limitation on enrollment for an honors course or an honors section of a course may be established if, in addition to the review by the faculty in the discipline or department and by the Curriculum Committee as provided above, there is another section or another course or courses in the District which satisfy the same requirements. If the limitation is for an honors course and not only for an honors section, the District must also include in the course outline of record a list of each certificate or associate degree requirement that the course meets and of the other course or courses which meet the same associate degree or certificate requirement.

226

239

240241242243

245246247

248

244

249250251

253254255256

252

266

267 268 269

270

271

• Blocks of Courses or Sections: Blocks of courses or blocks of sections of courses are two or more courses or sections for which enrollment is limited in order to create a cohort of students. Such a limitation on enrollment may be established if, in addition to review by the faculty in the discipline or department and by the Curriculum Committee as provided above, there is another section or another course or courses that satisfy the same requirement. If the cohort is created through limitations on enrollment in the courses rather than limitations on specific sections of courses, then the District must include in the course outline of record a list of each certificate or associate degree requirement that the course meets and of the other course or courses which satisfy the same associate degree or certificate requirement.

Student Challenge Process

Any student who does not meet a pre-requisite or co-requisite or who is not permitted to enroll due to a limitation on enrollment but who provides satisfactory evidence may seek entry into the course as follows (Title 5 Section 55003(p)):

- If the challenge is upheld the student shall be allowed to enroll in the course, if space is available.
- If no space is available in the course when a challenge is filed, the challenge shall be resolved prior to the beginning of registration for the next term and, if the challenge is upheld, the student shall be permitted to enroll if space is available when the students registers for that subsequent term.

Grounds for challenge shall include the following:

- Those grounds for challenge specified in Title 5 Section 55003(p)(q).
- The student seeks to enroll and has not been allowed to enroll due to a limitation on enrollment established for a course that involves intercollegiate competition or public performance, or one or more of the courses for which enrollment has been limited to a cohort of students. The student shall be allowed to enroll in such a course if otherwise he/she would be delayed by a semester or more in attaining the degree or certificate specified in his/her educational plan.
- The student seeks to enroll in a course that has a pre-requisite established to
 protect health and safety, and the student demonstrates that he/she does not
 pose a threat to himself/herself or others.

The student has the obligation to provide satisfactory evidence that the challenge should be upheld. However, where facts essential to a determination of whether the student's challenge should be upheld are or ought to be in the District's own records, then the District has the obligation to produce that information.

Offices of Primary Responsibility: Instructional Services, Student Services (Enrollment Management)

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES

BP 4290 ACADEMIC HONESTY

References:

Article 3: Code of Ethics, Constitution of the Faculty of Palomar College; Faculty Handbook;

Statement on Professional Ethics, American Association of University Professors (AAUP)

"The Code of Ethics that appears in the Constitution of the Faculty of Palomar College serves as a reminder of the variety of obligations assumed by all members of the academic profession. These standards should become an integral part of each faculty member's personal and professional life.

Community college faculty members, guided by a deep conviction of the worth and dignity of the advancement of knowledge, recognize the special responsibilities placed upon them. Their primary responsibility to their subjects is to seek and to state the truth as they see it. To this end, faculty members devote their energies to developing and improving their scholarly competence. They accept the obligation to exercise critical self-discipline and judgment in using, extending, and transmitting knowledge. They practice intellectual honesty. Although faculty members may follow subsidiary interests, these interests must never seriously hamper or compromise their freedom of inquiry.

As teachers, faculty members encourage the free pursuit of learning in their students. They hold before them the best scholarly standards of their discipline. Faculty members demonstrate respect for the student as an individual and adhere to their proper role as intellectual guides and counselors. Faculty members make every reasonable effort to foster honest academic conduct and to assure that evaluation of students reflects their true merit. They respect the confidential nature of the relationship between faculty member and student. They avoid any exploitation of students for advantage and acknowledge significant assistance from them. They protect the academic freedom of students.

As colleagues, faculty members have obligations that derive from common membership in the community of scholars. Faculty members do not discriminate against or harass colleagues. They respect and defend the free inquiry of associates. In the exchange of criticism and ideas, faculty members show due respect for the opinions of others. Faculty members acknowledge their academic debts and strive to be objective in their professional judgment of colleagues. Faculty members accept their share of faculty responsibilities for the governance of their institution.

As members of an academic institution, faculty members seek above all to be effective teachers and scholars. Although faculty members observe the stated regulations of their

institutions, provided the regulations do not contravene academic freedom, they maintain their right to criticize and seek revision.

Faculty members give due regard to their paramount responsibilities within their institution in determining the amount and character of work done outside it. When considering the interruption or termination of their service, faculty members recognize the effect of their decisions upon the program of the institution and give due notice of their intentions.

As members of their community, faculty members have the rights and obligations of all citizens. Faculty members measure the urgency of these obligations in the light of their responsibilities to their subject areas, to their students, to their profession, and to their institutions. When they speak or act as persons, they avoid creating the impression that they speak or act for their colleges or universities. As citizens engaged in a profession that depends upon freedom for its health and integrity, faculty members have a particular obligation to promote conditions of free inquiry and to further public understanding of academic freedom.

Also see BP/AP Institutional Code of Ethics and BP 4030 Academic Freedom.

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES

2

BP 4300 FIELD TRIPS AND EXCURSIONS

4 5

References:

6 Title 5 Section 55220;

Government Code Section 11139.8

8 9 10

11 12

7

The Superintendent/President shall rely primarily on the Faculty Senate to establish procedures that regulate the use of District funds for student travel and attendance at conferences and other activities that are performed as a class assignment or co-curricular activity.

13 14 15

16

17

The District may pay for expenses of students participating in a field trip or excursion with auxiliary, grant, or categorical program funds if the funds are used consistently with the funding source. The expenses of instructors, chaperones, and other personnel traveling with students may also be paid from District funds.

18 19 20

21

Students and staff shall at all times adhere to the standards of conduct applicable to conduct on campus.

22

Office of Primary Responsibility: Faculty Senate and Instructional Services

4 5

6 7

8

9 10 11

12

17

18 19

24

25 26 27

> 28 29

30 31 32

33

34 35 36

> 37 38

39 40

41

42 43

44 45

Yellow = CCLC recommended.

Date Approved: SPC 2/15/2011: Revised:

(Replaces former Palomar Procedure 306 and all previous versions of AP 4300.)

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES REV 6/28/18

AP 4300 FIELD TRIPS AND EXCURSIONS

References: Government Code Section 11139.8;

Title 5 Section 55220

The District recognizes the value of combining classroom instruction with field experiences which are consistent with the provisions of law and authorizes implementation.

The District may conduct student field trips and excursions in connection with courses of instruction or District-related social, educational, cultural, athletic or musical activities to and from places in California, or any other state, the District of Columbia, or a foreign country. However, funds and resources shall not be used to fund, sponsor, or support employee or student travel to states that are subject to the travel ban (as identified in Government Code Section 11139.8) which prohibits state-funded and state-sponsored travel to states with laws that authorize or require discrimination on the basis of sexual orientation, gender identity or gender expression or against same-sex couples or their families, with the exception of those situations specifically exempted in the legislation as determined by the Chancellor.]

The District shall engage faculty members, supervisors, and other personnel as may be necessary for such excursions or field trips who desire to contribute their services over and above the normal period for which they are employed by the District.

The District shall, at the discretion of the Office of Finance and Administrative Services transport students, faculty members, supervisors or other personnel by use of District equipment, contract to provide transportation, or arrange transportation by the use of other equipment.

The District shall maintain appropriate liability insurance for District equipment. If travel is to and from a foreign country, the liability insurance shall be secured from a carrier licensed to transact insurance business in the foreign country.

If a District vehicle is desired, a Vehicle Request Form must be submitted to Facilities Office. If chartered transportation is desired, a purchasing requisition must be submitted to Purchasing Services.

The District may pay expenses of faculty members, chaperones, and other personnel participating in a field trip or excursion. Payment shall be by way of itemized reimbursement in a form prescribed by the Office of Finance and Administrative Services.

The District may pay for expenses of students participating in a field trip or excursion with auxiliary, grant, or categorical program funds if the funds are used consistently with the funding source.

Forms for requesting approval of a field trip or excursion are available on the Instructional Services web page. It is the faculty member's responsibility to be familiar with the regulations governing field trips and excursions. Only students registered in the class may participate.

Students who participate in field trips or other College-sponsored activities such as performance or athletic events or competitions which may conflict with regularly scheduled classes are responsible for any work missed as a result of the absence. Students must notify faculty members in advance of impending absences.

No faculty member may require or excuse a student's absence from another faculty member's class. Students who miss participating in field trips or other College-sponsored performances or competitions as a result of class conflicts shall not be penalized.

No student shall be prevented from making a field trip or excursion which is integral to the completion of the course because of lack of sufficient funds. The District shall coordinate efforts of community service groups to provide funds for students in need of them.

The faculty member must make arrangements with the Cashier's Office for the collection of any student fees, if applicable. Faculty members are not to collect fees from students.

All persons making a field trip or excursion shall be deemed to have waived all claims against the District for injury, accident, illness, or death occurring during or by reason of the field trip or excursion. All adults taking such trips and all parents or guardians of minor students shall sign a statement waiving such claims.

A Single-Day Field Trip Authorization Request Form is due to the appropriate division dean five weeks prior to the proposed trip if it is outside of the Country, or two weeks prior to the proposed trip if it is within the Country. Students cannot be required to attend a single-day field trip unless such request is noted in the syllabus.

A Field Course Authorization Request Form is due at least eight weeks prior to the proposed trip, and must receive Governing Board approval prior to the date of the trip. An itinerary that identifies required activities, total instructional hours, and specific meeting times is required.

A Extended Field Trip Authorization Request Form is due at least five weeks prior to the proposed trip and must receive Governing Board approval prior to the date of the trip.

Yellow = CCLC recommended.

Date Approved: SPC 2/15/2011: Revised:

(Replaces former Palomar Procedure 306 and all previous versions of AP 4300.)

92	An itinerary which identifies required activities, total instructional hours, and specific
93	meeting times is required.
94	
95	A Study Abroad Course Authorization Request Form is due at least eight weeks prior to
96	the date of the trip and must receive Governing Board approval prior to the date of the
97	trip. An itinerary which identifies required activities, total instructional hours, and
98	specific meeting times is required.
99	
100	Office of Primary Responsibility: Instructional Services

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES Rev. 4/23/18

AP 4610 INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENTS

References:

Education Code Sections 78015 and 84752; Title 5 Sections 51006, 53410, 55002, <u>55003</u>, 55005, 55300-55302, 55600 et seq., <u>55805.5</u>, 58051 <u>subdivisions</u> (c) – (g), 58051.5, 58055, 58056, 58058 subdivision (b), and <u>58102-58108</u> <u>58100-58110</u>

The responsibility for developing, monitoring, and managing Instructional Service Agreements rests with the Assistant Superintendent/Vice President of for Instruction. All such agreements shall comply with relevant policies and procedures and shall at minimum include administrative procedures, terms, and conditions relating to:

- enrollment period
- student enrollment fees
- the number of class hours sufficient to meet the stated performance objectives
- · supervision and evaluation of students
- withdrawal of students prior to completion of a course or program, and
- terms and conditions relating to cancellation and termination of the arrangement.

Instruction claimed for apportionment under Instructional Service Agreements shall be under the immediate supervision and control of an employee of the Palomar Community College District who has met the minimum qualifications for instruction within the relevant discipline.

Where the instructor is not a paid employee, the District shall have a written agreement or contract with each instructor conducting instruction for which full-time employees are to be reported and stating that the District has the primary right to control and direct the instructional activities of the instructor.

The District shall list the minimum qualifications for instructors teaching these courses and that the qualifications are consistent with requirements in similar District courses.

Courses conducted under an Instructional Service Agreement must be held at facilities which are clearly identified as being open to the general public. Enrollment in the

Yellow = CCLC suggested language. Blue = internal. Gray = Legal Update 32 (April 2018)

Date Approved: 9/15/2009; Revised:

(Replaces all previous versions of AP 4610-)

55 56

57

62 63 64

65 66 67

68 69 70

76

82 83 84

85

86

81

course must be open to any person who has been admitted to the District and has met any applicable prerequisites. BP 5052 titled Open Enrollment must be published in the District Catalog, Class Schedule, and any addenda to the Class Schedule, along with a description of the course and information about whether the course is offered for credit and is transferable.

Course outlines of record for advanced public safety courses will not list as a prerequisite public safety employment or possession of a basic course diploma. Appropriate health and safety prerequisites or enrollment limitations can include the requirement to pass a California Department of Justice Live Scan, or other additional requirements that comply with the law.

Course outlines of record for advanced public safety courses should include a sufficiently detailed list of prerequisites that are directly related to the content of the advanced course so that all prospective students can be assessed for enrollment eligibility. Prerequisites may not be established or construed to prevent academically qualified persons not employed in public safety agencies from enrolling in and attending courses.

A student may request an evaluation of his/her previous experience and coursework to determine if it is equivalent to the listed requirements. A student found not to meet the prerequisite requirements may challenge the prerequisites through the District's prerequisite challenge process. The District must maintain documentation that demonstrates its processes for assessing student eligibility for enrollment were followed.

College publications shall inform students regarding the method by which they may seek an evaluation for equivalent enrollment eligibility for advanced public safety courses. College publications, including the course outline and syllabi, shall include a notification that approval of equivalent enrollment eligibility is not a guarantee that state regulatory or licensing agencies will also grant equivalency for licensure or employment purposes.

Degree and certificate programs must have been approved by the State California Community Colleges Chancellor's Office and courses that make up the programs must be part of the approved programs or the District must have received delegated authority to approve those courses locally.

The courses of instruction are specified in the agreement, the outlines of record for such courses and are approved by the District Curriculum Committee as meeting Title 5 course standards, and the courses have been approved by the Governing Board.

88	Faculty teaching different sections of the same course shall teach in a manner consistent with the approved course outline of record and hold students to the
89 90	appropriate level of rigor.
91 92	Records of student attendance and achievement shall be maintained by the District. Records shall be open for review at all times by officials of the District and submitted on
93 94	a schedule developed by the District.
95 96 97	Students enrolled in courses under an Instructional Services Agreement shall have access to all ancillary and support services provided for the students.
98 99	The District is responsible for obtaining certification verifying that the instructional activity to be conducted shall not be fully funded by other sources.
100 101	The District shall comply with the requirements of Title 5 Sections 55230-55232
102 103	concerning approval by adjoining high school or community college districts and use of non-district facilities, if classes are to be located outside the boundaries of the District.
104 105	Office of Primary Responsibility: Instructional Services

1 2	INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES
3	BP 4675 CLASS SIZE
4 5	Reference:
6 7	No references
8	
9	Class size (course minimums and maximums) shall be determined through negotiations
10	between the District and the Palomar Faculty Federation (PFF).

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES

AP 4675 CLASS SIZE

References:

No references

The District and the Palomar Faculty Federation shall negotiate maximums and minimums for each course. Department chairpersons/directors, the appropriate dean, and the Assistant Superintendent/Vice President of Instruction shall maintain the negotiated class sizes.

With approval from the appropriate dean and the Assistant Superintendent/Vice President of Instruction, classes with enrollments smaller than the negotiated minimum may be offered for the following reasons:

- There is only one (1) section of the course offered during the academic year and the course is required for transfer, an associate of arts degree or a certificate
- The smaller enrollment is required by law or the accrediting organization for that program
- Traditionally, the class has been combined with other related courses and the combined enrollment meets or exceeds the minimum requirement
- The course is experimental or is being offered for the first time
- The available facilities cannot reasonably accommodate the minimum number of students set by the Course Maximums Committee
- The cost for offering the course is covered by contract or other non-public funds
- The Assistant Superintendent/Vice President of Instruction finds that special circumstances warrant an enrollment below the negotiated minimum

Office of Primary Responsibility: Instructional Services

Blue = internal

HUMAN RESOURCES 1 2 **REV 5/16/18** 3 4 **BP 7330 COMMUNICABLE DISEASE** 5 6 References: 7 Education Code Sections 87408, 87408.6, and 88021; 8 California Code of Regulations Title 8 Section 5193; 29 Code of Federal Regulations Part 1910.1030 9 10 The intent of this policy is to protect public health from diseases that could be 11 transmitted via the scope/nature of the position and not to discriminate against 12 individuals. 13 All applicants for positions shall affirm, via medical certificate signed by a licensed physician/physician assistant/nurse practitioner, that they are free from communicable 14 15 diseases, including but not limited to active tuberculosis, that could be transmitted via activities reasonably within the scope of the position. Employees shall not commence 16 employment service until such medical certificate has been provided to the District. 17 All newly hired employees must show that within the past 60 days they have submitted 18 to a tuberculosis risk assessment and, if risk factors are present, been examined to 19 20 determine that they are free from active tuberculosis. If risk factors were present at the tuberculosis risk assessment, and an examination occurs, after the examination the 21 22 employee shall provide the District with a certificate from the employee's examining 23 physician showing that the employee was examined and found to be free from active 24 tuberculosis. 25 26 An applicant's having a communicable disease does not automatically disqualify the 27 applicant from employment unless it poses a significant risk to the health and safety of others and that risk cannot be eliminated through reasonable accommodation. For 28 29 applicants with communicable diseases who request accommodation, the District shall make a determination as to reasonableness consistent with applicable state and federal 30 laws and the District's Equal Employment Opportunity and Nondiscrimination policies and 31 procedures including. Also see BP/AP 3420 titled Equal Employment Opportunity and BP 32 3410 titled Nondiscrimination. 33 34 All employees shall be required to undergo a tuberculosis risk assessment prior to their date of hire and every four years thereafter to determine if they are free from 35 36 tuberculosis. 37 The District also recognizes the potential danger to certain employment groups from occupational exposure to blood-borne pathogens, and offers information, vaccinations, 38 39 and blood tests for such groups consistent with applicable law. Procedures governing 40 bloodborne pathogens are as outlined in the District's Bloodborne Pathogens Plan, which

is available through Environmental Health and Safety.

- 42 Also see BP/AP 5210 titled Communicable Disease (related to students) as well as AP
- 43 7336 titled Certification of Freedom from Tuberculosis.